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AFFIDAVIT
20 |, Shane Dowling, of 1/78b Ocean St Bondi NSW, Journalist, affirm as follows:
1. Proceedings details

In 2017 Seven Network (Operations) Limited and Seven West Media Limited
instituted proceedings in the equity division of the NSW Supreme Court against an
unknown party. From memory | think the matter name at the time was known as
Seven v Publisher X or something like that (Matter number is 2017/1 16771) At a
later date | was made the respondent based on hearsay evidence of Sevens
Lawyers Richard Keegan. It is another one of Kerry Stokes’ / Seven’s / Capilano
Honey’s SLAPP lawsuits against me and they have numerous SLAPP lawsuits

30 against other parties which are relevant because they reinforce how this matter is
a SLAPP lawsuit and they show why the High Court of Australia should remove
the matter so a precedent can be set outlawing SLAPP lawsuits.
Chief Justice Tom Bathurst made it very clear in September 2016 that he personal
vendetta against me and wanted me jailed for what | write and publish about
judicial corruption on my website and Chris D'aeth’s police statement shows
Justice Bathurst has ordered court staff to do what they can to make sure I'm
jailed. Based on the evidence this includes aiding and abetting Kerry Stokes in his
numerous SLAPP lawsuits against me. This is further supported by the fact that |
did 4 months jail last year because | was found guilty for calling Justice Clifton

40  Hoeben a paedophile, calling Registrar Christopher Bradford a suspected
paedophile and known bribe-taker and breaching 2 suppression orders because |
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wrnite about the contempt charge. Justice Tom Bathurst has had justice Clifton
Hosben dealing with 3 associated matters and he has refused to stand down from
thase matters where there is clear perceived bias and real bias.

It is currently set down for another direction hearing on the 22/5/19 where the
apylicants have charged me with contempt for breaching suppression orders even
though they have not proven | own the website because I don't.

Seten used the proceedings to subpoena my computer from the NSW Police to
use not only is this matter but also their others SLAPP lawsuits against me and
possibly others as | am a journalist and | have no doubt that Kerry Stokes and
Seven are after my sources. The reason had my computer was because of g
maicious complaint to the police by NSW Supreme Court staff on the instruction of
Chief Justice Tom Bathurst. There have been two judgments in this matter
invdving me which is judgment by Justice Lucy McCallum on the 19" of July 2017
(See annexure “A”) and a judgment on the 7" of December 2018, while | was in
jail, where Justice Rees gave Seven Network (Operations) Limited and Seven
West Media access to a copy of my computer (See annexure “B”).

Thereason had my computer was because of a malicious complaint to the police
by NSW Supreme Court staff on the instructions of Chief Justice Tom Bathurst |
regards to an email | sent to the judges of the NSW Supreme Court. The police
charge was withdrawn by the CDPP because the email was clearly and blatantly
political communication raising allegations of criminal conduct by judges. (See
annexure “C” which is an affidavit from an associated matter but has the relevant
documents to this matter) which has the police statement of the NSW Supreme
Court CEO and Principle Registrar Chris DAeth, the Prothonotary of the NSW
Supreme Court - Registrar Rebel Kenna and the arresting police officers and a
copy of the offending email) Further details are in this affidavit and the Application
for Removal.

Attached as annexure “D” is the statement of claim and attached as annexure “E”

is the latest court orders made.

2. Background
I have been on the receiving end of judicial bullying and bastardisation since 2014.

The same type of bullying that the NSW Bar President recently wrote about in the
media where judges are bullying barristers and lawyers. A recent example was on
the 3/5/19 where Justice Clifton Hoeben had 5 court Sheriffs sit at the back of the
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court to intimidate me while Justice Hoeben threatened me with jail at least 10
times during the course of the proceedings which only lasted about an hour. |
recently did 4 months jail which was in part for being found guilty of calling Justice
Hoeben a paedophile in court so Justice Hoeben should not be hearing my
miatters but he refusing to stand down from the matters.

In January 2011 | set-up and started publishing the website Kangaroo Court of
Australia which specializes in judicial and political corruption. Up to 2014 | knew
very little about any NSW judges except what | read in other media. But in April
2014 Kerry Stokes instituted defamation proceedings against me in what is best
described as a SLAPP lawsuit and since then he has instituted a number of other
SLAPP lawsuits and | have been before over 20 NSW Supreme Court judges and
| am now well-known and extremely disliked by NSW Supreme Court judges. |
have written many articles accusing judges of numerous crimes including taking
bribes and being paedophiles etc and most if not all of the judges are well aware
of the articles as many of the articles have been tendered in court, but none of the
judges have ever complained.

I have lost count of the number of suppression orders and non-publication orders
issued against me but my guess it would be over 20 all of which are or were a
baseless abuse of power by the courts and all almost all related to Kerry Stokes,
except the suppression orders in this matter, and without a doubt bribes are taking
place.

| have also had 2 super-injunctions issued against me both of which have been
lifted as it was scandalous that they were ever issued in the first place. A prime
example is the recent NSW Court of Appeal judgment Capilano Honey v Shane
Dowling (October 2018) where wide ranging suppression orders and non-
publication orders were lifted. The matter also had a super-injunction for 18

months, but it was removed by consent after pressure by the judge as it had

become very embarrassing for the court.

The SLAPP lawsuits are:
(The High Court of Australia needs to intervene and make SLAPP lawsuits illegal

as they are in many places overseas)
Munsie v Shane Dowling — Commenced April 2014 — Has not been finalized but
a judgment was handed down in May 2018 in the applicants favor after a hearing
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innApril 2017. This started out as a defamation claim against me by Kerry Stokes
ard his lawyer Justine Munsie regarding Seven paying Schapelle Corby for an
inlerview etc before Justice lan Harrison. The matter started off at an ex parte
hearing where the applicants managed to get wide ranging suppression orders,
nan-publication orders and a super-injunction.

The affidavit used to start the matter was written by Justine Munsie who said in the
afidavit she had permission from Kerry Stokes to write the affidavit for him which
means not only was Justine Munsie an applicant in the matter she was being paid
by Kerry Stokes to represent him in the same matter. This is powerful evidence of
attempting to pervert the course of justice and conspiracy to pervert the course of
justice by Kerry Stokes, Justine Munsie, Ryan Stokes and their barrister and
lawyers.

The suppression orders, non-publication orders and a super-injunction only lasted
a few days because they were so dodgy, and Justice lan Harrison lifted the orders.
A few days later the applicants instituted what can only be described as a back-
door appeal and had Justice Peter Hall reinstate the non-publication orders. The
applicants also charged me with contempt for breaching the super-injunction (even
though it was lifted after a few days and was never justified) and | was fined $2000
which | never had to pay. In 2015 Kerry Stokes Ryan Stokes was added as an
applicant.

The applicants provided no evidence to support their claim at the final hearing in
April 2017 as their barrister Sandy Dawson argued they did not have to provide
evidence as they had my defence dismissed and because they had interim orders
for the suppression orders. But they only provided hearsay evidence from their
lawyers Richard Keegan to support the interim orders (which is allowed under
section 75 of the 1995 evidence act) which means they now have final orders
based in hearsay evidence even though hearsay evidence is not allowed at a final
hearing as per the 1995 evidence act.

Since this matter has stated | have lost count of the number of articles and social
media posts the court have ordered me to take down. It is a classic SLAPP
Lawsuit.

This matter was before Justice Clifton Hoeben on the 3™ of May and he dismissed
my Notice of Motion as he said | need leave of the court which he refused. This

scandalizes the court given | did 4 months jail last year because | was found quilty
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for calling Justice Clifton Hoeben a paedophile, calling Registrar Christopher
Bradford a suspected paedophile and known bribe-taker and breaching 2
suppression orders because | wrote about the contempt charge. Justice Tom
Bathurst has had justice Clifton Hoeben dealing with 3 associated matters and he
has refused to stand down from those matters where there is clear perceived bias

and real bias.

Capilano Honey v Shane Dowling — Commenced 10 of October 2016 — The
matter has gone nowhere in over 2 ¥z years. Currently waiting for a decision by
Justice Clifton Hoeben in relation to the applicant’s application to have my defence
struck out. It is a perfect example of a SLAPP lawsuit.

This started out as an injurious falsehood and defamation claim against me in
ration to Capilano selling poisonous, toxic and fake honey by the Kerry Stokes’
controlled Capilano Honey (Stokes owns about 20% and rules Capilano with an
iron fist) and their CEO Ben McKee before Justice Peter Hall. The matter started
off at an ex parte hearing where the applicants managed to get wide ranging
suppression orders, non-publication orders and a super-injunction which is
identical to the Munsie v Shane Dowling matter and the same barrister Sandy
Dawson and lawyers, Richard Keegan, Martin O’Connor from Addisons etc) were
used.

On the 8" of June 2018 Justice Lucy McCullum squashed the suppression orders
and non-publication orders in the judgment: Capilano Honey Ltd v Dowling (No 2)
[2018] NSWSC 865 (8 June 2018). The super-injunction had been lifted a few
weeks earlier by consent. The judgment was stayed to give Capilano Honey and
Ben McKee an opportunity to appeal which they did. Capilano Honey and Ben
McKee were smashed in a unanimous decision by the Court of Appeal for having
no reason for the ex parte hearing, using hearsay evidence, using secondhand
hearsay evidence and in many cases having no evidence to support their case.
The court found that the suppression orders had “an unjustifiable chilling effect on
freedom speech”. The court of Appeal judgment are: Capilano Honey Ltd v
Dowling (No 1) [2018] NSWCA 128 (15 June 2018) and the main judgment is:
Capilano Honey Ltd v Dowling (No 2) [2018] NSWCA 217 (3 October 2018).

This matter is currently be heard by Justice Clifton Hoeben which scandalizes the
court given | did 4 months jail last year because | was found guilty for calling

)
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Justice Clifton Hoeben a paedophile, calling Registrar Christopher Bradford a
suspected paedophile and known bribe-taker and breaching 2 suppression orders
because | wrote about the contempt charge. Justice Tom Bathurst has had justice
Cliton Hoeben dealing with 3 associated matters and he has refused to stand

down from those matters where there is clear perceived bias and real bias.

Jane Doe and Ors v Shane Dowling — Commenced 21 December 2016 — The
matter has gone nowhere in over 2 ¥ years just like the Capilano Honey matter.
The applicants are a well-known on-air Channel 7 TV host and a well-known
Channel 7 actress, and two former Channel 7 female staff members were added
at a later date.

This started out as a defamation claim against me paid for by Seven West Media
and Kerry Stokes and using their same lawyers as per the Munsie v Shane
Dowling and Capilano Honey v Shane Dowling matters. It is in relation to the Tim
Worner / Amber Harrison sex, drug and fraud scandal where Harrison wrote in a
legal document that the applicants also had sexual relationships with 7 CEO Tim
Worner and also likely benefitted from the fraudulent use of shareholders funds.
The matter started off at an ex parte hearing (as per the previous two SLAPP
lawsuits) before Justice Stephan Campbell where the applicants managed {o get
wide ranging suppression orders and non-publication orders based on hearsay
evidence by their lawyer Richard Keegan. None of the applicants have ever filed a
signed affidavit any evidence to support their claim they were defamed.

On the 2™ of February 2017 the applicants instituted contempt proceedings
against me, for breaching suppression orders that were only issued on then basis
of Richard Keegan'’s affidavit of hearsay evidence, and | was jailed for 4 months.
At this point in time the applicants had my defence kicked out in August 2018 and
have failed to have the matter set down for final hearing. | have contacted the
lawyers who ignored me. They are the same lawyers for the others matters. | even
contacted the applicants directly and their lawyer Richard Keegan emailed me and
said they are waiting for a hearing date. That's a lie as they have had since August
2018 to get a hearing date and they ignore my emails. It's another blatant SLAPP
lawsuit which the High Court needs to make illegal.

This matter is also currently being dealt with by Justice Clifton Hoeben which
scandalizes the court given | did 4 months jail last year because | was found guilty

174
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for calling Justice Clifton Hoeben a paedophile, calling Registrar Christopher
Bradford a suspected paedophile and known bribe-taker and breaching 2
suppression orders because | wrote about the contempt charge. Justice Tom
Bathurst has had justice Clifton Hoeben dealing with 3 associated matters and he
has refused to stand down from those matters where there is clear perceived bias
and real bias.

| also emailed Justice Clifton Hoeben for this matter to be set down for a
direction’s hearings, as | was instructed by Justice McCallum’s associate to do so,
and Justice Hoeben has also ignored my emails. As of today (8/5/19) | received
am email saying the matter is set down for directions on the 17/5/19 before Justice
Hoeben who will without a doubt do exactly what the applicants want as he has

with the other matters.

Seven Network and Seven West Media v Shane Dowling — Commenced on the
19" of April 2017 against The publisher, sevenversusamber.com. | seem to have
been made the respondent on the 31% of July 2017. The claim seems to be based
on trying to hide Seven’s criminal conduct that was being exposed by Amber
Harrison. The matter has gone nowhere since then although it is currently set
down for another directions hearing on the 22/5/19 where the applicants have
charged me with contempt for breaching suppression orders even though they
have not proven | own the website because | don't.

While | was in jail | refused to have the matter heard until | was out of jail but | was
denied natural justice and bullied by Justice Rees and she even had jail staff
threaten me to be at a hearing where she dismissed my Notice of Motion to set
aside their subpoena for a copy of my computer and give me back the copy of my
computer which was illegally copied but Justice Rees gave the applicants access

to the copy of my computer.

3. Contempt Charge
| was charged for contempt of court for saying on the 3™ of February 2017 in court
before Registrar Christopher Bradford that he is a known bribe taker and
suspected paedophile and that Justice Clifton Hoeben is a paedophile. The
Prothonotary went to court that afternoon at an ex parte hearing and had
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suppression orders and non-publication orders put on what | said in court. |
breached those suppression orders by writing an article telling people what
happened, and | was charged with a further 2 contempts for doing nothing more
than reporting what happened. | was not charged until April 2017.

| deny the allegations and argue that even if | was guilty of saying what the court
claims then it was protected as political communication as per Lange v ABC. What
| said in court was taken out of context and selectively edited to change what | had
said. It must be noted in September 2016 | said almost the exact same thing to
Registrar Bradford about him in court and he did not complain and refused to
recuse himself from hearing the matter. So in September 2016 what | said to
Registrar Christopher Bradford was such a minor issue he could still hear matters
involving me but in February 2017 it was such a huge issue that he had to have
me charged with contempt and could no longer hear matters involving me. What
changed? An email | sent to the Supreme Court judges in September 2016 and
the subsequent police complaint which was coordinated by Chief Justice Tom
Bathurst, CEQ and Principle Registrar Chris DAeth and the Prothonotary Rebel

Kenna regarding the email.

4. Email to the court accusing 15 judges, 1 magistrate and 2 registrars of
being paedophiles or suspected paedophiles.

On the 6™ of September 2016 | sent an email to all the judges of the NSW
Supreme Court accusing 15 judges, 1 magistrate and 2 registrars of being
paedophiles or suspected paedophiles and raising issues of judicial bribery such
as the $2.2 million Australian Mafia bribe of NSW judges as reported in 2015 by
the ABC Four Corners program and Fairfax Media. | notified the judges that |
would be publishing a story and gave them an opportunity to respond. No one
responded and | published an article on the 9™ of September 2016 titled
“Paedophile priest gets 3 months jail for raping 3 boys by NSW Supreme Court’s
Justice Hoeben™. The article also published a copy of the email. No one has ever
complained to me about the article or asked me to take the article down from my
website. Even when the police charged me in June 2017 they never asked me to

take the article down and it is still on my website.

9. Police charge

Ny
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The police charged me in June 2017 for sending the email in September 2016.
Until that time, | never knew a compliant had been made to the police. | never
received the brief of evidence until October 2017 when | was in jail for 4 months
and never read it until December 2017. | never received the full brief of evidence
as they clearly has no intention of going to hearing. | found it odd my hearing for
contempt was on the 4™ of May 2017 and at the hearing | raised the fact that | had
said the same thing in the email and article in September 2016 and nothing had
happened. Then a few weeks later in June 2017 the NSW police raided my unit
and took my computers. This was disturbing as both matters were clearly related
and were in fact part of the same issue.

Chris DAeth’s and Rebel Kenna’s wrote police statements which confirmed that
the same people who were trying to stitch me up for the police complaint were also
the same people who stitched me up for the contempt charges. They were having
trouble getting the police and CDPP to charge me, so they stitched me up in the
Supreme Court for contempt where they controlled the outcome then seemed to
use that to put pressure on the NSW Police to charge me. Ultimately the CDPP
found no crime had been committed with the email and withdrew the charge. At
paragraph 10 of Chris D’Aeth’s police statement he confirms Chief Justice Tom
Bathurst’s involvement and oversight of the attempt to stitch me up for jail.

Below is part of an article I published in April 2018 after the CDPP withdraw the
charge with some of the time line of events before | said what | said in court on the
3 of February 2017 which shows Chief Justice Tom Bathurst and others
conspiring to have me charged for saying the same thing but more extensively in
the email in September 2016.

The article is titled “CDPP formally drop criminal charges against journalist Shane
Dowling in free speech case” and can be found at:
https://kangaroocourtofaustralia.com/2018/04/02/cdpp-formally-drop-criminal-

charges-against-journalist-shane-dowling-in-free-speech-case/

6. The timeline of events as outlined in the police witness statements of
Chis D’Aeth, Rebel Kenna and Detective Kristijan Juric.
The most interesting thing about the timeline and police statements is the fact that
Chief Justice Tom Bathurst went police shopping to find someone who would

op



10

20

30

-10-

chirge me when he had obviously been told that the CDPP and Federal Police
waldn’t charge me because no crime had been committed.

6 "september 2016 — Tuesday — 11.35pm — | sent email to NSW Supreme Court
judyes accusing 18 judicial officers of being paedophiles or suspected paedophiles
an( raising issues of bribery: The email started off:

‘I an writing to you all regarding the list of paedophile judges that | intended on
mraing a formal complaint about to the AFP, Australian Crime Commission, NSW
Crine Commission and Royal Commission into Child Sexual Abuse. The list is
bebw.”

“Aswe all know corruption in the NSW Courts is widespread and systemic. In July
2015 Fairfax Media and the ABC’s Four Corers program reported that NSW
Jjudpyes had been bribed $2.2 million by the Mafia which was confirmed by Justice
David Davies in December 2015. Maybe you have evidence that the above judges
have also benefited from the Mafia bribes or other bribes. If you have evidence of
judrial bribery, please contact me ASAP.” (Click here to read more)

6thof September 2016 — (Source: Chris D'Aeth police statement) Registrar Rebel

Kemna forwarded my email to Chris D’Aeth, CEO and Principle Registrar of the
Supreme Court of NSW. This seems odd as | sent the email at 11.35pm so its
hard to see Rebel Kenna checking her email that late at night and then forwarding
it on. Maybe it just a mistake by Chris D’Aeth.

8" September 2016 — | published an article titled “Paedophile priest gets 3 months
jail for raping 3 boys by NSW Supreme Court's Justice Hoeben” which included a

copy of the email from the 6" of September.

8" September 2016 — (Source: Chris D’Aeth police statement) Chris D’Aeth
forwarded my email from the 6" September to Jillian Caldwell, Special Counsel for
the Crown Solicitor asking for advice.

8" of September 2016 — (Source: Detective Kristiian Juric police statement
paragraph 4) Detective Senior Sergeant Day handed a report from the NSW
Crown Solicitors Office to Detective Kristijan Juric regarding an alleged

telecommunications offence in relation to the email | sent.

Detective Kristijan Juric makes no mention of the CDPP who the matter was later
sent to by Chris D’Aeth via his instruction to Jillian Caldwell. Detective Kristijan
Juric also fails to mention the AFP which the CDPP forwarded the matter to.

M
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D<ective Juric’s statement jumps from a complaint on the 8" of September 2016
at jaragraph 4 to paragraph 6 where he says:

‘6 .During my subsequent enquiries | contacted the Crown Solicitors Office of
N3/ to obtain contact deftails of persons named in the email and article. As result
of hese enquires on the 8" of March 2017, Rebel Kenna attended Sydney City
Poice Station and supplied a statement.”

Sowhat did Detective Juric do from the 8th of September 2016 until the Kenna
witiess Statement on the 8th March 2017. Did he contact the 17 others on the list
and{why didn’t they give police statements? It makes no sense why a complaint
was made to the CDPP and Federal Police only days after the complaint was
haded to NSW Police Officer Detective Kristijan Juric.

What might make sense is if the complaint was made first to the NSW Police and
they said it was a federal crime and needed to go to the CDPP or AFP. Then the
CDPP and AFP made a decision that no crime had been committed and then the
NSW Police were pressured into charging me because the CDPP and AFP
refused to do so. But only one of the 18 named as paedophiles and suspected
paedophiles, Rebel Kenna, would make a complaint. | think it is likely that Rebel
Kenna was pressured to make a complaint.

Duing my arrest Detective Kristijan Juric said | could face other charges when
they contact the others named in my email. Which means from the 8™ of
September 2016 until the 21* of June 2017 they had not contacted anyone else
named in the email with the obvious question of why not.

9™ of September 2016 — | was in court for a mention before Registrar Christopher
Bradford. | asked Bradford to stand down given | had published on the internet that
he is a suspected paedophile and known bribe taker which | recorded on video.
Registrar Bradford refused to stand down. (Click here to watch the video)

20" September 2016 — (Source: Chris D’Aeth police statement) Chris D’Aeth

receives an email with a 21 page document attached from Jillian Caldwell giving
advice regarding the email.

21th September 2016 — (Source: Chris D’Aeth police statement) Chris D’Aeth
discusses advice given by Jillian Caldwell with Chief Justice Tom Bathurst. After
the discussion Chris D’Aeth sends Jillian Caldwell an email asking that the matter
be sent to the CDPP for consideration

LA
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26h September 2016 — (Source: Chris D’Aeth police statement) Chris D’Aeth
regives an email from Jillian Caldwell saying she had been emailed by the CDPP
ani they had referred the matter to the Australian Federal Police for further
inestigation. | never heard from the AFP or the CDPP.

2ni February 2017 — (Source: Chris D’Aeth police statement) Chris D’Aeth writes
a vitness statement for the NSW Police. The fact that the NSW Police were back
inwlved must mean the AFP and the CDPP had refused to charge me with any
crine.

3"February 2017 — At court on Friday the 3" of February 2017 | said something in
cout and was later charged and found guilty for contempt and for breaching
suppression orders that were put on the matter. The contempt matter was heard
on the 4th May 2017. | can’t say what for as there are suppression orders on it and
one¢ of my bail conditions while | wait for sentencing is that | cannot breach the
sufppression orders again.

8" March 2017 — (Source: Rebel Kenna police statement 8-3-17) Rebel Kenna

makes a police statement.

4™ Way 2017 — The hearing for the contempt was held before Justice Helen
Wilson. | was later ordered to serve all Attorney-Generals a Notice of a
Constitutional Matter.

One of my key arguments was that | had emailed the court in September 2016
accusing 18 judicial officers of being paedophiles or suspected paedophiles and
raised bribery allegations but none of them had complained and | had also
published the email in an article in September 2016 and they hadn’t complained
about that either.

21! June 2017 — | was charged by the NSW police for breaching
telecommunications laws for the email that | sent in September 2016 to all the
judges of the NSW Supreme Court asking questions and giving them an
opportunity to respond to allegations which is nothing more than journalists do
around the world every day of the week. The police executed a search warrant on
my unit while | was at work and took my computer and the spare one | had which
the police said they would give back in about 10 days which forced me to buy a
new one. | went to the police station after work and was charged.

| thought the police charge was clearly related to me raising the fact that they had
not complained about the email in court on the 4" of May during my defence for

NE
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<ntempt. The police said that they had received a complaint from the Crown
Silicitors Office which | remember as taking that they received a complaint from
&h CEO Leah Armstrong who at that stage had carriage of my case. Lea
Amstrong stood down from having day-to-day carriage after the police charge.

The police charge and the fact that it was withdrawn raises many questions that
the Court of Appeal and trial judge refused to address. Two of which are:

1. Firstly, what was the Court of Appeal and frial judge doing hearing the
10 matter? If ever there was a time an interstate judge/judges needed to be
brought in this was it.

2. How could | be charged for contempt for court for making the allegations in
court | made in February 34 2017 when the same allegations and more
extensive ailegétions where already before the court in the email | sent to
the judges in September 2016 and that was found to be ok as the charge
was withdrawn by the CDPP and Justice Wilson has in effect said it was
OK. She said it is not what | said but where | said it and how that resulted in
my concept charge. She in effect said it is OK if | say it outside court.

20 7. Stealing my computer
The court had my computer while they were prosecuting me and sentencing me
forcontempt and have given it to Seven / Kerry Stokes so he can use it for his war

of law against me.

AFFIRMED by the deponent
A at Sydney in NSW
on14/5/19. BOADI TUL/LT /ey "

Before me: Signature of deponerit
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witness administering oath or affirmation]

*[delete if inapplicable]

(Ms) Deborah Anne Phillips
‘A Justice of the Peace in and for
the State of New South Wales
Reg. No. 223899
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Bl THE HIGH COURT OF AUSTRALIA

SYDNEY REGISTRY No. of 20
Affidavit of Shane Dowling affirmed on 14t of May 2019
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF AUSTRALIA

SYDNEY REGISTRY No. of 20
BETWEEN: Shane Dowiing
Applicant
and
10
Seven Network (Operations)
First Respondent
Seven West Media Limited
Second Respondent
EXHIBIT "A”
20
This is the exhibit marked “A” produced and shown to Shane Dowling at the time
of affirming his affidavit this 14/5/19. '
Judgment — Justice Lucy McCallum 19 July 2017
Before me
30 ' s
(Ms) Deborah Anne Phillips

A lustice of the Peace in and for
the State of New South Wales

Saticitor Justice of the Peace Reg. No. 223899
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Supreme Court ofNew South Wales
Seven Network v bowling [2017] NSWSC 1803 (19 July 2017)

Last Updated: 11 January 2018

Supreme Court
New South Wales

Case Name: Seven Network v Dowling

Medium Neutral Citation: [2017] NSWSC 1803

Hearing Dateds): 18 July 2017

Date of Orders: 18 July 2017

Decision Date: 19 July 2017

Jurisdiction: Common Law

Before: McCallum J

Decision: Computer produced to the court by NSW police to be returned to the defendai
order for general access to packets 85 and S6 vacated

Catchwords: PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE - subpoena

Legislation Cited: Uniform Civil Procedure Rules 2005 (NSW), pt 23

Cases Cited: Commonwealth v John Fairfax & Sons Ltd (1980) 147 CLR 39: [1880] HCA 44

Category: Procedural and other rulings

Parties: Seven Network (Operations) Limited (1st plaintiff)

Seven West Media Limited (2nd plaintiff)

Shane Dowling (defendant)

Representation: Counsel:

K Smark SC

No appearance for the defendant

Solicitors:
Addisons (plaintiffs)
File Number(s): 2017/00116771
Publication Restriction: Non-publication orders have been made in these proceedings

JUDGMENT (DELIVERED ORALLY — REVISED)

1. HER HONOUR: These are proceedings brought by Seven Network (Operations) Limited (“Seven”) to restrain the disclosure
and use of allegedly confidential information. The proceedings are in the Equity Division of the Court. The circumstances of
their coming before me (in the Common Law Division) will be explained shortly.

2. The current defendant to the proceedings is Mr Shane Dowling. Yesterday, Mr Dowling brought an application before me as
duty judge in the Common Law Division seeking the return of a computer owned by him which had been seized by police
during the execution of a search warrant and later produced by police to the Court in response to a subpoena issued in these
proceedings at the request of Seven.



3. At the conclusion of argument yesterday, | directed that the c{Jeruter be returned to Mr Dowling _ That order was made
towards the conclusion of the Court's ordinary sitting hours (after lengthy argument). Accordingly, it was necessary to reserv
my reasons. These are my reasons for making that order.

4. The circumstances in which Mr Dowling’s application was brought may be summarised as followss The proceedings
concern information which came into the possession of a former employee of the plaintiff during the period of her employmer
By these proceedings, Seven seeks to restrain the disclosure and use of that material in the hands of g party to whom it is
apprehended the material was leaked by the employee. The proceedings were commenced ex parte by summons filed in
Court on 19 April 2017. At that stage Mr Dowling was not named as the defendant. The defendant weas identified only as "the
publisher” of a named website (the website cannot be named; an order has been made prohibiting its publication so as to
preserve the interest sought to be vindicated in the proceedings).

5. On 19 April 2017, Ward CJ in Eq made ex parte orders until further order restraining the defendart as then named from
using or disclosing the alleged confidential information and requiring certain material to be removed from the website. Her
Honour made a further order allowing service by email at the email address nominated on the website.

8. The proceedings came back before her Honour the following day, presumably after service of the summons and orders in
the manner directed. There was no appearance for the defendant and the proceedings were adjournied. They were adjourned
several times after that; on no occasion did any entity or person appear in response to the description of the defendant as
framed in the original summons.

7. On 23 June 2017, the plaintiff filed in court an amended summons naming Mr Dowling as the oniys defendant. It is not clear
on the information | have available to me when Mr Dowling was served with the amended summons or when he was informec
as to when the matter was next in court. His first appearance in the proceedings appears to have been before the registrar
yesterday at the return of the subpoena. Mr Dowling denies that he is the publisher of the website: the purpose of his
appearance was to secure the return of his computer,

8. The subpoena was issued on 5 July 2017 at the request of the plaintiff and was made returnable on 13 July 2017 (according
to its terms). The recipient was the Commissioner of the New South Wales Police Force. The documents sought were
described in the schedule as follows:

Documents recording the results of any inspection or analysis of the computers, hard drives, electronic devices
or storage devices obtained pursuant to a search warrant executed at [a nominated address];

Any computers, hard drives, electronic devices or storage devices obtained by NSW Police, or copies of any of
the information found on same made by NSW Palice, as a result of the search warrant executed [at the address
nominated] on or arcund 21 June 2017.

9. Confusingly, aithough the return date on the face of the subpoena was 13 July 2017, the only entry in the Court’s records for
that date is a note that the subpoena was returnable the following day, 14 July 2017. | understand Mr Dowiling did not appear
on either occasion,

10. For reasons that are not clear, the subpoena was stood over to 17 July 2017 before the Registrar. On that occasion, Mr
Dowling appeared. Over Mr Dowling's objection, the Registrar made the following orders for access:

Access only to an approved copying firm, possibly Law in Order, for seven days. General access to the other
parties thereafter. The Court further orders that the laptop computer produced to the Court in packet S6 is to be
returned to Mr Dowling upon a copy of the hard drive being retained by the Court. That laptop is to be returned
to Mr Dowling within seven days if the copy of the hard drive is provided.

11. Mr Dowling came directly from the Registrar's court to the court in which | was sitting as Duty Judge to seek a review of
those access orders. He informed me that he had informed his opponents appearing for the plaintiff of his intention to do so
and that was confirmed by the fact that in due course they attended the court in which | was sitting.

12. Upon being informed (in the absence of the court file) that the action was brought in the Equity Division, the first issue |
raised was whether the proceedings should more appropriately be determined by the Duty Judge sitting in that division
yesterday. Mr Dowling indicated his preference to have the issue determined by me owing to my familiarity with issues in other
Jroceedings against him in the Common Law Division, which he contended would have some importance to the issues raised
oy his application. After conferring, for propriety, with the Duty Judge in Equity, it appeared based on our respective listings
hat there was greater hearing capacity for an urgent application in this list and that there was no objection to my hearing it.
Accordingly, | proceeded to hear Mr Dowling’s application.
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13. The applicatiomwas treated in substance as an application for review of the Registrar's access Orders, In particular, Mr
Dowling, whose computer was seized by police on 21 June 2017, opposed the order allowing an app> roved copier to hold it fo
a further period of &p to seven days. The urgency contended for by Mr Dowling was his need to have the computer refurned
" him for a number asfpurposes, including his urgent need to prepare submissions for sentencing Proceedings in a conternpt
application against him which is listed for hearing before Harrison J on Friday. The plaintiff in those Broceedings, or at least
some entity associaled with Seven, is the moving party on the contempt motion. Mr Dowling also faceg separate contempt
proceedings which ., as | understand the position, are part-heard before Wilson J brought on the application of the Prothonota
arising out of remarks Mr Dowling made in Court about a Registrar of the Court.

14. It has also beenforeshadowed in these proceedings that Seven will bring a contempt motion against Mr Dowling in
respect of the continued publication of the material the subject of the restraining and take-down orders made by Ward CJ in
Eq on 19 April 2017 .| note that, at the time that order was made, Mr Dowling was not the named defendant to the proceeding
It has nonetheless Deen foreshadowed that a contempt motion will be brought against him as an individual for failure or refus
to remove the offersdng material and for its continued publication. The premise of that application, as | understand the
position, would be that Mr Dowling is the same entity as the originally-named defendant to the sumimons, being "the publishel
of the un-nameable website.

15. | considered thatthe matters relied upon by Mr Dowling to establish an urgent need to have his Computer, which is his ow
possession, retumexd to him were sufficiently important to warrant hearing the application on an urgent basis. In light of the
urgency of the hearing, it proceeded in an unusual and at times haphazard manner. Neither party had come armed with any
evidence, for understandable reasons. | was compelled in the circumstances to inform myself as best | was able by reference
to material provided in documentary form and matters stated on each side from the bar table.

16. 1 should note that the urgency and lack of orderly preparation of the application was not due to any fault on the part of Mr
Dowling. Mr Dowling, who represents himself in the defence of these proceedings, was not served with the subpoena until the
afterncon of 11 July 2017, less than two days before its first return date according to its terms.

17. In the absence of pleadings (the proceedings having been commenced by summons), the cause of action relied upon by
the plaintiff must be discerned from the affidavit evidence that has been read in support of the motions brought to date, being
two affidavits of Mr Keegan sworn 19 April and 23 June 2017. The action appears to be based upon the proposition that the
former employee of the plaintiff, who it is clear is contractually bound not to use or disclose the confidential information in
question, must have disclosed that information to its publisher on the website in circumstances such as to give rise to an
equitable obligation on the part of recipient not to use or disclose the information.

18. The existence ofa proper cause of action on that premise (such as to found the relief granted ex parte in the Equity
Division) appears to be recognised in the authority of the Commonwealth v John Fairfax & Sons Ltd (1 980) 147 CLR 39; [1980]
HCA 44 at page 50. Factually, the cause of action rests on an inference that Mr Dowling is the person who received the
information and that he received it in circumstances of the kind contemplated in that authority. It is not appropriate or
necessary to determine the strength of any of those contentions beyond being satisfied that there appears to be a proper
cause of action in law and one which might reasonably be argued on the facts | was told will be provabie at trial. Accordingly, |
determined Mr Dowling’s application on the assumption that there is a cause of action underlying the orders that have been
made to date and the relief sought.

19. The more difficult question was whether it was appropriate to allow another entity to uplift the computer on terms the effect
of which was not only to deprive Mr Dowling of possession of his rightful property but to do so in circumstances where his
need for access to that property was informed by the impending criminal proceedings against him in the contempt applications
to which | have referred.

20. In determining the application, | had regard to the following aspects of the circumstances in which the subpoena came to
be issued at Seven’s request.

21. First, whilst it may be accepted that Seven was obliged to frame the subpoena in terms which did not impose any
obligation in the nature of discovery on the recipient of the subpoena, the Commissioner of Police, it is plain enough that
Seven could not have issued a notice to produce or subpoena to Mr Dowling in the terms of the schedule set out above, It
would have been necessary to articulate with greater precision the documents or records sought. The schedule to the
subpoena to the police as framed is apt to capture a broader range of documents which in all likelihood will include documents
that do not have any relevance to any issue in these proceedings.

22. Secondly, it is clear enough that the plaintiff would not otherwise be entitled to uplift and inspect the whole computer. An
application for inspection might have been brought under pt 23.8 of the Uniform Civil Procedure Rules 2005 (NSW) but none
has been brought forward to date. Any such application at this stage, after a contempt motion has been foreshadowed (as a
result of which Mr Dowling, as an individual, faces the prospect of a custodial sentence) would require consideration of the
juestion whether its effect was to compel Mr Dowling to incriminate himself. Where access to the computer is sought by the
very party bringing the contempt motion, the court must be astute to adopt a procedure that is fair.



23. Finally, it is uniilely that the plaintiff could have framed the application as one for interim preservation of the computer
under part 25.3 (sirxe the proceedings do not concern the computer itself as property) but that, in stabstance, is the effect of
the access orders rmade by the Registrar.

24. The productiors of the computer by police after they had seized it in execution of a search warramit was, in effect, pure
serendipity for the plaintiff. It created a practical opportunity for them to obtain production of an item 1 think it would have bee
difficult for them to inspect in the ordinary course of the proceedings otherwise.

25. The plaintiff pointed to the importance to its case of preserving any information connecting Mr Dowiling with the publicatic
of the impugned website. It must be accepted, having regard to aspects of Mr Dowling's conduct, as recorded in other
judgments of the court, that that is a live concern. Conversely, however, | was concerned about two rnatters. One is the fact
that the computer was prima facie Mr Dowling's own property. The Court should not lightly interfere with a person's right to
possession of their own property in ways which fall outside the ordinary interlocutory processes of the court.

26. Secondly, and more importantly, | was concerned as to the potential impact on Mr Dowling of being deprived of the
computer during the important period of his preparation for the sentencing proceedings to be heard by Justice Harrison this
Friday and more gererally other criminal allegations faced by him. Mr Dowling submitted that he needs the computer for thos
purposes. The plaintif complained that there was no identification by Mr Dowling of any particular category of document he
needed for that purpose. In my view, the likely need for the computer is obvious and | did not see that it should fall to Mr
Dowling to have to establish that matter on evidence; rather, the assumption should be that he is entitied to have possession
of his own asset unless a compelling basis was established for depriving him of it.

27. For those reasorns, | vacated the orders for general access made by the Registrar and made orders to facilitate the return
of the computer to fvr Dowling late yesterday afternoon.

28. Two further aspects of the circumstances surrounding this application should be noted. The first is that when the
proceedings were listed today for publication of my reserved reasons, Mr Smark SC, who did not appear yesterday, very
properly drew my attention to a matter which was not clear from the information before the court yesterday, namely, that there
were in fact produced to the court by police two packets of documents. Packet S5 contains elecironic documents. Packet S6
was the computer, which has now been returned to Mr Dowling. Unbeknownst to the court and, | apprehend, Mr Dowling,
packet S5 was the subject of a general access order made on 14 July 2017.

28. The plaintiff has made two copies of those documents, but has not inspected them. The plaintiff proposed, and | agree,
that those documents should not be inspected by the plaintiff until some procedure has been put in place to enable Mr
Dowling to argue what he appears to have intended to argue all along - namely, that the subpoena ought to have been set
aside before documents were produced. To that end, | propose to direct the plaintiff to return both copies of S5 to be held by
the Court separately from packet S5 itself. There will be no order granting access to the copies. They will be preserved by the
Court in their current form.

30. The second matter is that it emerged towards the end of the hearing yesterday that, during the relatively lengthy period
over which the matter was being argued during the day, the authorised copier had in fact already uplifted the computer and
was in the process of copying it throughout the day while argument proceeded. While that did not contravene the orders made
by the Registrar and was in fact in accordance with those orders, in my view that is 2 matter which ought to have been brought
fo the attention of the Court at an earlier point while argument proceeded.

FEEEEERERE
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1. HER HONQUR: In this matter, the defendant filed 2 motion seeking orders that an interstate judge be appointed to hear the matter or that the
matter be transferred to the Federal Court of Australia, and that a subpoena be set aside. The motion came before me for hearing twice. On the
first occasion, the defendant sought to adjourn the hearing of the motion, and | granted that application. On the second occasion, the defendant
sought a stay of the proceedings and declined to deal with his motion.

2. Before determining the defendant's application for a stay and what, if anything, should be done with the motion, it is necessary to set out the

procedural history of this matter. From time fo time, the defendant referred to other proceedings in the Common Law Division of this Court which |
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understand concerTid contempt proceedings in respect of comments made by the defendant about judicial officers (Common Law Proceedings). 1
will also refer to thos proceedings where necessary.

PROCEDURAL HESORY

3. In 2014, the plainiffs had a dispute with an employee. Following mediation, the plaintiffs and the employee entered into a Deed of Release, the
terms of which weretonfidential and included an agresment by the employee not to publish confidential information. The employee did not comply
with the terms of theedeed. In 2017, the plaintiffs commenced proceedings against the employee seeking orders restraining the employee from
using confidential irybrmation in breach of the deed (Employee Proceedings). On 13 February 2017, interim orders were made by McDougall J
restraining the emplyee from using confidential information in breach of the deed.

4. On 20 February 217, the defendant issued a tweet in respect of the Employee Proceedings. On 21 February 2017, McDougall J extended the
interim orders concening the employee and the defendant issued a second tweet on the subject. On 22 February 2017, the plaintiffs became
aware of a website vhich contained commentary on the Employee Proceedings (New Website). On 28 February 2017, an existing website
associated with the &fendant published the Deed of Release (Old Website).

5. In April 2017, the &fendant sent an email to the plaintiffs’ directors and lawyers posing various questions about the employee and then tweeted
his email. The defer@nt published McDougall J's orders, his email to the plaintiffs and his tweets on the Old Website. These items also appeared
an the New Website.The plaintiffs’ solicitors asked the defendant to delete the tweets, and the defendant agreed to do so.

6. On 19 April 2017. te plaintiffis commenced these proceedings against the publisher of the New Website, seeking various orders restraining the
use of material whichessentially derived from the Deed of Release. On 19 April 2017, orders were made by Ward CJ in Eq for interim orders
restraining the publister of the New Website from using or disclosing the confidential information and ordering the removal of an article from the
New Website. Apparatly, these orders were not complied with. At this time the publisher of the New Website had not been ascertained with any
certainty and was sinply referred to in the pleadings and orders as “Publisher X".

7. On 23 June 2017, he matter came before Slattery J for directions. The plaintiffs had by then formed the view, rightly or wrongly, that the
defendant was the pwlisher of the New Website. The defendant denies this emphatically. The plaintiffs sought leave to amend their summons to
refer to the defendantinstead of “Publisher X”. His Honour granted leave to amend the summons to name the defendant.

The Subpoena

8. In the meantime, o 21 June 2017 the NSW Police executed a search warrant at an address in Bondi Beach. The plaintiffs came to learn of this
fact from comments nade by the defendant on his website. On 5 July 2017, at the plaintifis’ request, a subpoena was issued to the Commissioner
of Police for producticn of the following material (the Subpoena):

1. Documents ecording the results of any inspection or analysis of the computers, hard drives, electronic devices or storage devices
obtained pursiant to a search warrant executed on the address [at] Bondi Beach ... on or around 21 June 2017.

2. Any computers, hard drives, electronic devices or storage devices obtained by NSW Peolice, or copies of any infcrmatioﬁ found on
same-made byNSW Police, as a result of the search warrant executed on the address [at] Bondi Beach ... on or around 21 June
2017.

The Subpoena required documents to be produced to the Court by 9.00am on 13 July 2017. The Commissioner of Police produced a computer
hard drive, which was labelled “S-5" by the Exhibits Office (the Hard Drive).

9. On 11 July 2017, a copy of the Subpoena was served on the defendant. Rule 33.5(2) of the Uniform Civil Procedure Rules 2005 (NSW) (UCPR)
requires a party at whese request the subpoena is issued to serve a copy of the subpoena on the other parties to the proceedings “as soon as
practicable after the subpoena has baen served on the addressee”. Ordinarily, providing the defendant with the subpoena on 11 July 2017 would
not be considered “as soon as practicable” after the subpoena was served on the Commissioner of Police, although | do not know how easy or
difficult it was to serve the defendant at that time.

10. On 14 July 2017, the matter was listed for return of subpoena before a Registrar of this Court. There was no appearance by the defendant. The
Registrar made a general access order in respect of the Hard Drive. The matter was stood over for further return of the Subpoena on 17 July 2017
at 8.00am. The plaintifis arranged for the Hard Drive to be uplifted and copied by approved copiers. Later on 14 July 2017, NSW Police produced a
laptop in further answer to the Subpoena. The Exhibits Office identified the laptop as “8-8" (the Laptop).

11. On the evening of Sunday, 16 July 2017, the defendant sent an email to the Associate to Her Honour Justice McCallum, a judge of the Common
Law Division of this court, requesting an urgent hearing on 17 July 2017 to stop the plaintiffs having access to the Laptop, and for an order that the
Laptop be retumed to him. Apparently, the defendant sent this request to her Honour as she had carriage of two other matters in which the

defendant was a party.
12. At 9.00am on 17 July 2017, at the further return of the Subpoena before the Registrar, the plaintiffs sought access to the Laptop. The defendant

appeared and opposed the order. After argument, the Registrar made the following order for access:
Access only to an approved copying firm, possibly Law In Order, for 7 days. General access to the other parties thereafter.

The Court further orders that the laptop computer produced to the Court in Packet S-6 is to be returned to Mr Dowling upon a copy of
the hard drive being retained by the Court. That laptop is to be returned to Mr Dowling within 7 days if the copy of the hard drive is

provided.

13. At 11.10am on 17 July 2017, the defendant appeared before McCallum J, who was sitting as Duty Judge in the Common Law Division. Her
Honour explained to the defendant that there are two divisions in the Supreme Court, being the Common Law Division and the Equity Division. The



defendant asked herHonour to deal with the matter given that she had carn%ggof the two other matters in which the defendant was 2 party. The
defendant informed ber Honour that the material on the Laptop was relevant to his conduct of those proceedings as it had “all my data, it's got
privileged information etc”. Her Honour agreed to deal with the defendant's application to review the access orders made by the Registrar in
respect of the Lapto). At the conclusion of the hearing later that day, her Honour directed the plaintiffs to endeavour to contact the person currently
in possession of the Laptop and request that person to make arrangements to have the Laptop returned to her Honour’s Associate. Her Honour
also vacated the order for access made by the Registrar that day in respect of the Laptop. At 4.57pm, the defendant signed a receipt
acknowledging receit of the Laptop from her Honour's Associate.

14. On Tuesday 18 Jily 2017 at 2.00pm, her Honour gave an ex tempore judgment varying the Registrar’s orders to return the Laptop to the
defendant and vacat: the order for general access with respect to the Hard Drive: Seven Nefwork v Dowling [2018] NSWSC 1803. The plaintiffs’
senior counsel informed her Honour that a copy of the Hard Drive had been made by approved copiers and delivered to the plaintiffs’ solicitors,
who had made a furtier copy but not inspecied the Hard Drive. The plaintifis’ counsel offered to provide both copies of the Hard Drive to her

Honour. Her Honotusr roted the following:

The plaintiff has made two copies of those documents, but has not inspected them. The plaintiff proposed, and | agree, that those
documants should not be inspected by the plaintiff until some procedure has been put in place to enable Mr Dowling to argue what
he appears tohave intended to argue ail along — namely, that the subpoena ought to have been set aside before documents were
produced. To hat end, | propose to direct the plaintiff to return both copies of S5 to be held by the Court separately from packet S5
itself. There will be no order granting access to the copies. They will be preserved by the Court in their current form.

Her Honour stood the matter over before the Equity Duty Judge on 24 July 2017.

15. The two copies ofthe Hard Drive remain in an envelope in the Court’s file marked “No access is to be granted without leave of the Court”. As
such, of the two items produced by NSW Police, one, the Laptop, was retumed to the defendant and the second, the Hard Drive has been copied
but the copies are with the Court and the question of access to the Hard Drive is yet to be determined.

Contempt Motion

16. On 21 July 2017, the plaintiffs filed a motion seeking a declaration that the defendant was in contempt of court for breaching the orders made by
the Court on 18 April 2017 and related orders (Confempt Motion). On 24 July 2017, the matter came before the Equity Duty Judge Rein J for
directions. There was no appearance by the defendant. Directions were made for the plaintiffs to serve a statement of claim, evidence in support of
the Contempt Motion and for the defendant to file a defence. In addition, his Honour made the following orders in respect of the Subpoena:

Direct that the defendant is to file and serve any notice of motion in relation to the subpoena {whether to set it aside in whole or in
part or otherwise), together with any evidence in support of such motion, by 18 August 2017, should he wish to do so:

His Honour stood the matter over to 25 August 2017.

17. On 9 August 2017, the defendant was sentenced to four months imprisonment. On 25 August 2017, this matter came before Pembroke J for
directions. There was no appearance by the defendant as he was in gaol. His Honour made directions for the filing of a defence and affidavits by
the plaintiffs in support of the Contempt Motion and, in respect of the Subpoena:

Direct that the defendant is to file and serve any notice of motion in relation to the subpoena (whether to set it aside in whole or in
part or otherwise), together with any evidence in support of such motion, by 29 September 2017.

The plaintifis were ordered to provide a copy of the orders to the defendant within 7 days and the matter was listed for directions on 3 October 2017
before the Registrar.

18. On 28 September 2017, the Court received a letter from the defendant seeking summary dismissal of these proceedings given the plaintiffs’
alleged contempt:

The applicants are in contempt of the court orders as they were ordered to serve me a copy of the orders within 7 days. They did not
serve a copy until the 12/9/17. The applicants should be charged with contempt.

19. On 3 October 2017, the matter was listed for directions before the Registrar, There was no appearance by the defendant who remained in gaol.
The Regisirar made various orders in respect of the Contempt Motion and also made the following order in respect of the Subpoena:

The defendant to file and serve any motion in respect to the subpoena issued to the Commissioner of Police either to set aside or
otherwise by 24 October 2017. Unless such a motion is filed the Court will consider orders on 7 November 2017.

The defendant was also directed to file and serve any motion regarding a strike out or dismissal of the claim by 24 October 2017, presumably
prompted by the defendant's letter to the Court. The Contempt Motion was listed for hearing before Kunc J on 30 January 2018. The matter was

also stood over to 7 November 2017 for directions.
20. On 5 November 2017, the defendant sent an email to the Associate of His Honour Justice Kunc seeking a stay of the proceedings until he was

released from gaol. The defendant also sent a letter to His Honour in similar terms. On 7 November 2017, the Registrar stood the matter overto 11
December 2017 before His Hanour Justice McDougall, presumably as a result of the defendant's correspondence asking for a stay. On 11

December 2017, McDougall J adjourned the matter until 13 December 2017.



21. On 13 Decembye 2017, the defendant appeared and sought an adjoummen;ﬁving regard to his recent release from gaol. The plaintiffs sought
access to the Hard Irive as the plaintiffs wished to rely upon the contents of the Hard Drive in support of the Contempt Motion listed for hearing on

30 January 2018, towhich the defendant said to his Honour:

Shouldn’'t | #Frve a look at it first? It might be a case | don't object.

22. Given the Contenpt Motion listed for hearing on 30 January 2018 before Kunc J, McDougall J made the following orders:

1. Stand the: ubpoena over to his Honour’s list on 30 January 2018.

2. Direct thatany motion to set aside the subpoena be filed and served, together with the supporting affidavit by 12 January 2018 and
that the noti<: of motion be made returnable before Kunc J on 30 January 2018.

3. Direct thatany affidavit in compliance be filed and served by 24 January 2018 on the subpoena question.

Transfer Motion

23. On 12 January 2418, the defendant filed a motion (Transfer Motion) seeking orders that:
- (1) an interstate judie be appointed to hear the matter or that the matter be transferred to the Federal Gourt of Australia; and

. (2) the Subpoena b» set aside.

together with an affickvit in support of the motion. The affidavit contained material from the Common Law Proceedings. As | understand it, the
material was profferei by the defendant as indicating that, by reason of remarks that he had made about judicial officers and the Common Law
Proceedings, these poceedings could not be heard by any judge of this Court.

24. On 30 January 2018, the Contempt Motion and Transfer Motion came before his Honour Kunc J. The defendant appeared and sought an
adjournment to get Iejal advice. The plaintiffs consented to an adjournment for that purpose but pressed for access to the Hard Drive. The
plaintifis’ counsel saidhe anticipated that the Hard Drive may contain material relevant the Contempt Motion and was also relevant to the
substantive proceedings. The transcript contained the following exchange:

DEFENDANT:One thing | did offer last year was “Okay, let me have a look at the file.” If there’s nothing there | object to, they can
have it. | don’tcare.

... SMARK: — we agree.

HIS HONOUR: Sometimes the sun shines in my court, and it's shining at the moment and they agree.

DEFENDANT: Yes.

HIS HONOUR: So | will make an order in due course for access to you.

25. His Honour noted that, as the defendant was not a lawyer and was not subject to the duties that a lawyer normally had to the Court, an
appropriate regime nesded to be in place so that, when the defendant inspected the Hard Drive, the documents remained under the control of the
Court. The plaintiffs said that they were willing to pay the costs of having a court approved copier make a complete copy of the Hard Drive for the
defendant. The defendant expressed disquist about the Hard Drive leaving the Court to be copied as this created an opportunity for other people to
get copies of the Hard Drive. His Honour invited the parties to discuss a practical way to enable the defendant to inspect the Hard Drive and to
inform his Honour’s chambers of what agreement or arrangements were reached. The defendant suggested that an option might be that he come

in with his own laptop and charger and sit and have a look at it:

My personal gut feeling is there is quite possibly nothing | am going to object to. But | am not a criminal expert, and | have got
lawyers that should get appointed soon...

26. After further discussion, the defendant decided that he would not inspect the Hard Drive until he had obtained legal advice. His Honour made
the following orders:

1. Directs the proceedings, including the proceedings generally, the plaintiffis’ motion filed 21 July 2017 and the defendant’s motion
filed 12 January 2018 are all stood over for further directions before Kunc J at 9.30am on 1 March 2018,

2. Notes that the Commissioner of Police does not object to access to the parties being granted to subpoena packet S5.
3. Notes that the plaintiffs do not object to the defendant having first access to the subpoena packet S5.

4. Directs that if the defendant wishes to exercise his right of first access to subpoena packet S5, the defendant has leave by email to
the Associate to Kunc J to propose directions which the Court should make for him to exercise that right.



27. On 28 February 2018, the defendant communicated with the Associate to His Honour Kunc J advising that he hac just been approved for Legal
Aid and Legal Aid was in the process of briefing counsel. The defendant asked that the hearing the next day be adjourned. His Honour adjourned
the hearing to 10 A.ril 2018.

28. On 10 April 2078, the defendant appeared but without legal representation. The defendant informed his Honour thiat his legal representation
had in fact been agxroved for another matter which had resolved. The plaintifis’ counsel sought again to formulate a feans by which the
defendant would irespect the Hard Drive. The plaintiffs’ counsel indicated that the contents of the Hard Drive were thought to contain information
which might show &iat the defendant was the author of the publications which are the subject of the proceedings, and also the subject of the
Contempt Motion. TThe defendant added:

| did bring rry laptop to check the packet 5. | can do it today.

29. The parties thex discussed the defendant inspecting the Hard Drive as follows:
--.HIS HONGQUR: Before we come te your motion and the plaintiffs motion, do you need to inspect the subpoeng packet?

DOWLING: The motion is to have it transferred to another court and I think, transferred to another court or have an interstate judge
brought in. I hink we should, | don't know if | need to. | don’t think | need to. That is probably an issue for the next court or the next

judge.

HIS HONOUR: No, it is an issue for you. If you want to look at material on subpoena, you are entitled to. it seemns to have been
something yeu have raised on earlier occasions. Now, if you want to inspect the material | will make some directions to make sure
that that happens. If you don’t want to inspect the material | will make some directions to get the motion or motions ready for hearing

SMARK: We would ask if Mr Dowling does not wish to exercise his right at first access, | didn’t understand him [to] say definitely one
way or the other.

HIS HONOUR: That is correct, | didn’t understand him to go one way or the other either.

SMARK: Once that matter has been resolved, that election has been made, we would ask that the plaintifis have a right of access.
That is discrete matter and that would seem to be able to be done in short order.

30. Further discussion ensued as to whether prayer 1 of the Transfer Motion should be heard first, being the application to transfer the
proceedings to another court, or whether the Transfer Motion and the Contempt Motion should be heard together. The following exchange

occurred:
HIS HONOUR: | should go back a step. We will go back a step. Do you wish to exercise your right to inspect subpoena packet S57
DOWLING: 1 certainly do but | think that should be put after this is heard because if it goes to another court it will be dealt with there.
HIS HONOUR: Do you object in the meantime to the plaintiffs having access to subpoena packet 852

DOWLING: Yes, | do, because if you see order 2 that | am seeking, is that the subpoena at least be set aside as an abuse of
process.

HIS HONOUR: | thought that had gone away, that you were simply content, as long as you had first access, the problem of the
subpoena would go away.

DOWLING: No, why would it, if | have a look at it and it has got personal information on there that they should not have, what they
are doing is a matter of a fishing expedition.

SMARK: | am not seeking to shut Mr Dowiing out of the right to move to set aside the subpoena but the anterior step is for him to

have a look at the documents. He is obdurately declining to look at them one way or the other. Now if he wishes to see them, he
should now agree to the terms on which that access is permitted, and if he has no objection we can see them, if he does not, we can

take another course.
HIS HONQUR: Yes
DOWLING: | can do that, your Honour, but the point is, if | get up on number 2, it has been a waste of my time in the meantime.

HIS HONOUR: Mr Dowling, | am not going io allow the prayers in this motion to be approached like a buffet where we have a nibble



at order one, and then if we have not had enough to eat we move to or%e?é. This is an a la carte menu where: the whole thing has to
be dealt with in one go. You need to be in a position to argue both for your transfer and presumably there is stilj some point no matter
what happens in relation to order one, dealing also with the subpoena point.

DOWLING: Okay, [that] we can organise, | came with my laptop today so | can do it now if you want to give me the time.

HIS HONOUR: 1 will give you leave to inspect that material. We will need to work out what happens as a resul of your inspection
because if there is, and what | would expect, Mr Dowling, there may be material, | withdraw that.

I don’t knowwhere you are going to want to take it after you have inspected the contents. You may come to the view that there is
nothing there, there is no problem with the other side inspecting it and the whole thing may go away but step 1 is for you to inspect
the documents. When can you do that by?

DOWLING: Well, I can do that right now. | don't know if there is much on there. If there is very little on there, well, it would probably
take me fiveminutes to look at it.
31. Further lengthy discussion ensued as to when suited the defendant to inspect the Hard Drive and whether he wished to put on any further
affidavits in support of the Transfer Motion. Ultimately, the defendant suggested:

How about Z[pm], based on that police file only taking a few minutes to look at. if it is a mile long, well | don’t know but if it is only
short it will only take me five to ten minutes but if it is a two to three hour job, leave it at 2, if it is too extensive 1 can contact the

parties.

32. His Honour agreed, but then the defendant repeated his contentions that the Subpoena should be set aside complately. The hearing
continued:

DOWLING: The thing is, | don't believe they are entitled to access it because the original charge which enabled the police to raid my
house, was malicious prosecution, was withdrawn. An open and shut case of malicious prosecution. Open and shut case of

malicious presecution.

HiS HONOUR: Mr Dowling, if you want to take that position, then that would suggest that you have no need to look at what is on that
file. So you decide what you want to do, if you just want to say, point blank, they are not allowed to look at it and it should be set
aside, that is your right and | will proceed to make directions about that.

DOWLING: Yes that is the way to go, your Honour.

SMARK: [t is for Mr Dowling to take the course that he wishes to take.

33. As a result, his Honour indicated he would not make an access order. Rather, the Transfer Motion would be heard before the Contempt
Motion. His Honour clarified whether, in light of the defendant’s motion to transfer the proceedings to another court, the defendant objected to any
particular judge in the Equity Division hearing the Transfer Motion.

HIS HONOUR: ... The matter is in Equity, so may | take it then that you have no objection to any judge in the Equity Division dealing
with this matter.

DOWLING: At the end of the day, no, based on my application, obviously | have no objection to anyone in this Court dealing with any
of these matters going forward, someone has to hear it in the first place.

34. Further discussion ensued between the parties as to an appropriate timetable for the defendant to put on any further evidence and
submissions in respect of the Transfer Motion. Eventually, his Honour made the following orders:

1. The defendant is to serve any additional evidence on or before 4 May 2018 in relation to both prayers 1 and 2 of the defendant’s
Notice of Motion filed on 12 January 2018.

2. The plaintiff is fo serve any evidence in response on or before 18 May 2018.
3. Any evidence in reply and an outline of submissions is to be served by the defendant on or before 4 June 2018,
4. The plaintiff is to serve an outline of submissions on or before 11 June 2018.

5. The matter is listed before a Registrar in Equity on 13 June 2018 for the purpose of a hearing date being fixed in relation to prayers
1and 2 of the defendant’s notice of Motion filed 12 January 2018.

6. There to be liberty to restore before the Registrar to any party on 3 days’ written notice.
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7. The Court notes that today Mr Dowling was given the opportunity, if he ﬁhed, to exercise his right of first @qgegs i subpoena
packet S5, however Mr Dowling elected not to do so in favour of pressing his application that the subpoena to ghe Commissioner of
Police be set aside.

35. On 12 June 2078, the defendant filed a further affidavit in support of the Transfer Motion. The affidavit largely duplicates the material
accompanying his first affidavit.

36. On 13 June 208, the matter came before the Registrar, as Kunc J had ordered that it would. The defendant appeared. The Registrar listed the
motion for hearing at 10.00am on 13 September 2018 with an estimated hearing time of one day. The Registrar made orders for the parties to file
any further evidence and submissions in respect of the Transfer Motion, including that the defendant file and serve arvy evidence and submissions
in reply by 25 July 2018.

37. Itis the practice of the Equity Division, as set out in Supreme Court Practice Note SC Eq 1, “Supreme Court Equity Division — Case
Management in the Equity General List” that Court Books are prepared for the hearing of interlocutory applications. The usual order for the hearing

of interlocutory applications is:

No later than 5.00pm on the Wednesday before the hearing date, the parties are to deliver to the Associate o the Applications List
Judge a paginated Court Book containing the evidence, any objection thereto and a short outline of submissiong,

38. Ordinarily, the Court Book is prepared by the applicant on the motion, which in this case would be the defendant. A Court Book was not
provided to my chambers and, observing that the defendant was self-represented, my Associate contacted the clerk of the plaintiffs’ senior counsel
and asked that a Court Book be prepared. On 10 September 2018, the plaintiffs’ solicitor emailed my Associate, copying the defendant, advising
that there may be difficulties making the Court Book available to the defendant as he was in gaol and had indicated in Separate proceedings in the
Common Law Division that he did not wish to be required to attend court in person but rather by audio visual link. Nonetheless, the plaintiffs’
solicitors agreed to compile and send a Court Book to the gaol. On being informed that the defendant was in prison, | made orders for the
defendant to appear by audio visual link.

39. On 11 September 2018, a Court Book was delivered to the prison. On 12 September 2018, the defendant was provided with the Court Book.
The Court Book contained the following material:

Document Filed on behalf of Date

'Summons Plaintiffs 19 April 2017
Plaintiffs’ motion Plaintiffs 19 April 2017
IAffidavit of plaintiffs’ solicitor and confidential exhibit Plaintiffs 19 April 2017
The Subpoena Plaintiffs 5 July 2017
‘Contempt Motion Plaintiffs 21 July 2017
‘Statement of Claim Plaintiffs 31 July 2017
Affidavit of plaintiffs’ solicitor Plaintiffs 11 December 2017
Transfer Motion Defendant 12 January 2018
Affidavit of defendant in support of Transfer Motion Defendant 12 January 2018
Transcript before Kunc J 30 January 2018
Transcript before Kunc J 10 April 2018
Further affidavit of defendant in support of Transfer Motion Defendant 12 June 2018
Written Submissions Plaintiffs © 26 July 2018

First hearing

40. On 13 September 2018, the hearing of the Transfer Motion was listed before me. The defendant appeared by audio visual link. The defendant
informed me that he did not have the Court Book with him in the video booth and had anly been given 10 minutes’ notice of the hearing by prison
officers. The defendant said he was not in a position to proceed with the hearing and would not be in a position to do so until he was released from
gaol. | indicated that | was not minded to adjourn the hearing of the Transfer Motion given the procedural history of the matter. The defendant said
he had been denied natural justice, did not have access to all of his documents, was otherwise engaged in preparing for other court proceedings,
repeated his remarks about judicial officers and lay on the floor of the video booth. The court adjourned until a correctional officer provided the
defendant with the Court Book in the video booth and he was given an opportunity to resume his seat.

41. After the adjournment, the defendant declined to participate in the proceedings and declined to identify the affidavits which he relied upon in
support of the Transfer Motion. The defendant sought an adjournment of the hearing of the Transfer Motion until he was out of gaol which “should
be 21 September 2019” which was, obviously, a year away. The plaintiffs indicated they agreed to an adjourmnment of two weeks. | agreed to
adjourn the motion to 11.30am on 27 September 2018. | made the foliowing orders:

1. On the defendant’s application for an adjournment of the hearing of his motion filed on 12 January 2018, and with the consent of the
plaintiffs to that application, | adjourn the hearing of the motion to 11.30am on 27 September 2018.

2. grant leave to the defendant to provide any written submissions in support of his motion by Monday 24 September 2018. Thoss
submissions may be facsimiled to my chambers and copied to the plaintiff's legal representatives.
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3. I reserve he costs of today,

42. After the conclusion of the hearing, the orders which | had made were sent by facsimile to the defendant, and the: prison confirmed that the
orders had been prvided to the defendant &t 12.14pm.

Application for Removal

43. On 23 September 2018, the defendant faxed to my chambers an Application for Removal to the Higrs Court of Ausstralia. The defendant noted
in his cover emaik:

Given the agplication. the matter before your Honour should be stayed until the High Court of Ausstralia has handed down a judgment
on the application for remoyg;,

The basis for the application was, essentially, the same as prayer 1 of the Transfer Motion.

Second hearing

44. On 27 Septemizer 2018, the Transfer Motion was listed before me at 11.30am for hearing. The defendant appeared by audio visual link. |
proposed to treat tree Application for Removal as an application for a stay and to deal with the application for a stay and the Transfer Motion by
receiving evidence and submiissions from the parties on both applications; reserving judgment on both applications; ang , in the event that grant the
stay, giving judgmert on the Stay application only. The defendant refused to deal with Transfer Motion until he was released from gaol. He said he
was being denied reatural justice and his human rights. He repeated his remarks about judicial officers.

45. The plaintiffs were not aware of the Application for Removal but agreed to proceed nonetheless. | heard, firstly, the defendant's application for
a stay and then endeavoured fo deal with the Transfer Motion. The defendant again indicated in no uncertain terms that he was not going to
proceed on his motion. | informed him that, if he refused to participate in the hearing of the Transfer Motion, | may dismiiss the motion because he
declined to progressit. | asked him to identify the evidence that he relied upon in support of the Transfer Fdotion and he declined to do so. He
declined to deal withthe Transfer Motion.

46. The plaintifis sought dismissal of the Transfer Motion and an order for general access in respect of the Hard Drive. | expressed a concem that
there may be material on the Hard Drive which was subject to a claim for legal professional privilege and § did not wish that any privilege be lost by
granting general access. | suggested that the court might appoint an expert in the first instance to identify any privileged material so that the
defendant’s privilege was preserved. The plaintiffs did not oppose the defendant having first access to identify privileged material nor to appointing
an expert who would attend to this task given that the defendant was in prison and not legally represented. The defendant then made submissions
which were largely ot directed to the matters being discussed at the time but observations of 2 more general nature.

APPLICATION FORA STAY

47. The fact that the defendant has filed an Application for Removal under section 40 of the Judiciary Act 7903 (Cth) with the High Court of
Australia does not, without more, stay these proceedings. The Court does not have a specific statutory power to stay the proceedings where an
Application for Removal has been filed with the High Court, unlike the power to stay proceedings in the event of an appeal to the High Court
(section 77U, Judiciary Act), the power of the Court of Appeal to order a stay of the decision below (rule 51.44, UCPR) or whera proceedings are
transferred between the Local Court, District Court or Supreme Court of New South Wales (section 142, Civil Procedure Act 2005 (NSW)). In each
of these situations, a stay does not automatically follow simply by reason of having lodged an appeal or having transferred a case from one court

to another.
48. The Court has = general power to order a stay under section 67, Civil Procedure Act:

Subject to rules of court, the court may at any time and from time to time, by order, stay any proceedings before it, either permanently
or until a specified day.

49. In deciding whether to stay proceedings, the Court must weigh the prejudice to each party in light of the prospects of success in the higher
Court. In Jennings Construction Limited v Burgundy Royale Investments Pty Ltd [1986] HCA 84; (1986) 161 CLR 681, Brennan J said at 685:

In exercising the extraordinary jurisdiction to stay, the following factors are material to the exercise of this Court's discretion. In each
case when the Court is satisfied a stay is required to preserve the subject matter of the litigation, it is relevant to consider: first,
whether there is a substantial prospect that special leave to appeal will be granted; secondly, whether the applicant has failed to take
whatever steps are necessary 1o seek a stay from the court in which the matter is pending; thirdly, whether the grant of a stay will
cause loss to the respondent; and fourthly, where the balance of convenience lies.

50. A case which has some similarities to the one before me is Griffin v Council of the Law Society of NSW [2016] NSWCA 275. Mr Griffin, a
solicitor, appealed to the Court of Appeal against a finding of professional misconduct made by the NSW Civil and Administrative Tribunal of New
South Wales (NCAT) and also filed an Application for Removal to the High Court. Enforcement of NCAT's orders was stayed by the Court of
Appeal pending determination of the appeal to it. However, a stay of proceedings in the Court of Appeal in light of the Application for Removal was
refused. His Honour Emmett AJA considered the prospects of success in the High Court, the delay in bringing the remova proceedings and the
costs that would be occasioned by vacating the hearing of the appeal: at [33]-[35].

51. Adopting these principles, | do not think there is a substantial prospect that that the High Court will accede to the defendant’s Application for

Removal. Section 40 of the Judiciary Act provides (emphasis added):



(1) Any cau s¢ or part of a cause arising under the Constitution or .t’nvofvin"g?ignrerpretaﬁon that iz atany ime pyending in a federal
court other than the High Court or in a court of a State or Territory may, at any stage of the procee2dings before final judgment, be
removed imfo he High Court under an order of the High Court, which may, upon application of a partY for sufficsient cause shown. be
made on stich t&rms as the Court thinks fit, and shall be made as of course upon application by o¥ 0N behalf OF the Attcmeyeenéral
of the Comsmonwealth, the AttorneyGeneral of a State, the AttoneyGeneral of the Australian Cap#tal Territory or the AttorneyGeneral
of the Northern Territory.

{(2) Where:
(a) a cause isat any time pending in a federal court other than the High Court or in a court of a Territory; or
(b) there is 2t any tirme pending in a court of a State a cause involving the exercise of federal jurisdiction by thaz court:

the High Caurt may, tpon application of a party or upon application by or on behalf of the AttomeyGeneral of the Commonwealth, at

e ¥
any stage of the proceedings before final judgment, order that the cause or a part of the cause be removed inio the High Court on
such terms as the Court thinks fit.

52. Itis not clear to me that these proceedings include a cause “arising under the Constitution or involving its interpretation” nor “a cause involving
the exercise of federal jurisdiction” by the Supreme Court of New South Wales. The Application for Remowval does contain the word “constitution”
and cites Lange v Australian Broadcasting Commission [1987] HCA 25; (1997) 189 CLR 520. It may be that the defendant has in mind an argument
concerning the implied freedom of political communication, or perhaps an argument that the common law of contempt is an impermissible burden
on that implied freedom, although the Application for Removal does not say so: see Gray, "Contempt and the Australian Constitution — Part |
(2017) 22 Journal of Judicial Administration 3. Even if that is what the defendant has in mind, it is not clear to me how suich an argument arises out
of these proceedings, which concem whether “Publisher X" has published material in breach of confidentiality obligations arising from the Deed of
Release between the plaintiffs and their employee.

53. Rather, the basis of the Application for Removal is, as | understand it, that by reason of the Common Law Proceedings, these proceedings
cannot be heard by any judge of this Court. The disqualification of judges is not a matter of a constitutional character: Epner v Official Trustee in
Bankruptcy [2000] HCA 63; (2000) 205 CLR 337; Waterhouse v Independent Commission Against Coruption [2015] NSWCA 300 at [7H8]. In any
event, the weight of authority suggests that such an application will likely fail. A not dissimilar argument was considered by the High Courtin Re
Colina; ex parte Torney [199€] HCA 57; (1999) 200 CLR 388, which concerned contempt proceedings in the Family Court of Australia. The facts
were outlined by Gleeson CJ and Gummow J at [7]:

it is alleged that, during July and August 1998, Mr Tomey demonstrated outside the Family Court building in Melboume, distribt-mng
written material to members of the public, and making abusive remarks about the Family Court and its members. Some of the
comments attibuted tc Mr Tomey were expressed in very strong terms, blaming the court and its judges for the deaths of people and
for instances of child abuse, describing the judges as being “terrorised” by women's organizations, and claiming that “decisions are
being made on a daily basis destroying the lives of innocent children™, The literature said to have been handed out by Mr Torney
complained of bias against men. it asserted that if people knew the nature of orders made by judges, the likely consequence would
be violent action towards the judges. Judges were said to make decisions "based on their twisted morals” and are “protected by ...

secrecy”.

54. Proceedings against Mr Tomey for contempt were listed for hearing before Burton J. Before the charges came on for hearing, a national
conference of the Family Court of Australia was held in Melbourne at which the Chief Justice, Nicholson CJ, made a speech and gave interviews in
which he vigorously defended the Family Court against public attacks on the institution, including by saying:

The most strident critics of the court emanate from groups of men who regard themselves as having been badly treated by the family
court system. ...there is a more sinister element at work. ... Many demonstrate in strident terms outside the Court.

55. Mr Torney contended that one would have little difficulty in identifying him as being amongst the “strident critics™ referred to or as being 2
representative of the “sinister element” said to be “at work™ at [10]. Mr Torney said this created the appearance of institutional bias in the Family
Court of Australia and he sought an order that Burton J be prevented from hearing the contempt allegation. Gleeson CJ and Gummow J noted at

[29]:

The flaw in the argument is that it assumes a relationship between a Chief Justice and @ member of his or her court which is contrary
to fundamental principles of judicial independence. It is frequently overlooked that the independence of the judiciary includes
independence of judges from one another. The Chief Justice of a court has no capacity to direct, or even influence, judges of the
court in the discharge of their adjudicative powers and responsibilities.

56. Similarly, Callinan J noted at [142]:

..-on any view it cannot be said that the remarks made by the Chief Justice in the circumstances in which he made them could
possibly give rise to any apprehension of bias on the part of the different judge who is to try the charges. Dissents from, and
disagreements with judgments of chief justices of all courts are not uncommon. Judges are bound to, and reasonable observers
would appreciate that they will, try cases on the evidence before them and apply the law as they take it to be.



57. Likewise in Heedes v L.€gal Practice Board [2005] WASCA 166, the Legal Pﬁgc:ée Board filed a moion alleging ©aontempt of court against Mr
Heedes for purporting to aCt as 3 jegal practitioner without being admitted to practice. The motion for cor1tempt was lissted for directions before a
Master, who made intemperate remarks about Mr Heedes. The motion for contempt was listed before Mi<Kechnie J. Bir Heedes admitted he was
not a certificated legal practitioner and his Honour found that contempt had been proved. Mr Heedes apgoealed. citing the intemperate remarks of
the Master as givingrise t0 2 reasonable apprehension of bias with the consequence that Mr Heedes wz2s denied procedural faimess. The appeal
was dismissed. As Roberts—Smith Ja noted at [50]:

Here the appellant points to nothing said or done by the trial Judge, but relies wholly on inferencezs (which | consider to be
unreasonable in any event) from comments made by the master which do not purport to convey o reflect any wview taken or likely to
be taken by the trial judge.

58. Of course, in both cases. a court officer had made a comment which was said to give rise to an apprehension of bias. Here, the defendant
does not point to anything said by a judicial officer but, rather, to what he has said about judicial officers zs somehow Preventing other judges of
this Court fairly deciding other progeedings in which he is a party. :

59. I note that a similar application was made by Oliver and Dragan Markisic to Schmidt J in Attorney General v Markisic [2011) NSWSC 1436, Her
Honour was asked to disquatify herself on the basis that a fair minded observer would form the view that she was biased and, at [20]:

- that not only I, but @ny Supreme Court Judge would not be able to distance himself from this case and would not be able to bring
an impartial mind to the proceedings.

60. The Markisics suggested that it was necessary for the court to make arrangements to have a judge from another Country appointed to preside
in the proceedings. Her Honour did not accept this submission. At [25]:

That a fair-minded observer could come to the view, in the circumstances that had arisen, that nefther | nor any other member of this
Court could bring an independent or impartial mind to the determination of the issues arising in these proceedings, cannot be
accepted. Broad unsupporied assertions as o errors in previous proceedings and judgments, is riot a basis upon which such a claim
could be established. Noris the fact that the defendants have wide ranging complaints about the conduct of the Crown Solicitor, Mr
lan Knight, and against various other people, a basis upon which such a claim could be accepted.

61. The defendant made a similar application in Prothonotary of the Supreme Court of New South Wales v Dowling [2017] NSWSC 392 that an
interstate judge be appointed for the hearing of the Common Law Proceedings because the allegations made against him concerned allegations
which he had made against Judges and a Registrar of this court. Her Honour Justice Adamson dismissed his application. At [9]:

I consider the distinction drawn by Ms Mitchelmore, on behalf of the plaintiff, to be apt, in my view, because these contempt
proceedings concern the conduct of Mr Dowling in making the allegations, as opposed to the conduct of the judicial officer
themselves, itis not necessary to appoint an interstate judge. Moreover, the power of a particular court to deal with proceedings for
contempt is pre-eminently one which in my view ought be dealt with by the court itself as constituted by judges whose commissions
are to the particular court.

62. Her Honour was obviously correct. The proceedings before me are even further removed from the circumsiances considered by Adamson J.
These proceedings concern an application by the plaintiffs for relief by reason of the defendant's disclosure of the confidential information in the
Deed of Release between the plaintiffs and their former employee. Whatever the defendant has said about judicial officers is irrelevant to the
subject matter of these proceedings.

63. Overall, it seems to me that even if the subject of these proceedings gives rise to an issue of the character referred to in section 40 of the
Judiciary Act, the prospects of success of the Application for Removal being acceded to by the High Court are low as the only argument | can infer
from that document is conirary to authority.

64. Further, the balance of convenience favours the plaintiffs. These proceedings were commenced in April 2017. The question of the access to
the Hard Drive has been in issue since July 2017. The Transfer Motion has been on foot since January 2018. There is a protracted history of delay
which | have earlier set out. The defendant did not file the Application for Removal unti! after the hearing of the Transfer Motion on 13 September
2018 was adjourned. No explanation for the delay in filing the Application for Removal was given. In these circumstances, | refuse the defendant’s
application for a stay.

WHAT TO DO WITH THE TRANSFER MOTION

85. Section 61(3) of the Givil Procedure Act gives the Court power to make orders where the Court’s directions have not been complied with,
including by dismissing or striking out part or all of a claim and making such order as it considers appropriate.

66. The court may also order that proceedings be dismissed if a party does not prosecute the proceedings with due dispatch: rule 1 2.7, UCRP.
While the rule is directed to proceedings as a whole, Schmidt J made an order under this rule in similar circumstances to those before me in
Monteiro v State of New South Wales (No 4) [2016] NSWSC 1626. Her Honour explained, at [23]-[24]:

Mr Monteiro has had a fair opportunity to pursue that motion, if he wished. He has not pursued it, &s he ought to have done. even
given that he is in custody and has suffered ill health. In those circumstances it should be struck out for want of due despatch, as

Rule 12.7(1) of the Uniform Civil Procedure Rules 2005 (NSW) contemplates.

What must be borne in mind by both litigants and the Court is the requirements of s 56 of the Civif Procedure Act 2005 (NSW), which



imposes obsligations ©n the parties to assist the Court to facilitate the overﬁ?ding purpose there spreCified, namely, “the just, quick and
cheap resollution of £¥1e reg| issues in the proceedings”, particularly by participating in the proces=es of the Cotart ang complying with
its direction sand orclerg,

B7. The defendant has refused to move on the Transfer Motion, twice. It is his motion. The Transfer Mot#0N Was filed six months after the
Subpoena was firs retumnak>le before the Registrar, and only then after orders were made on four erderss 0 file such & motion. This was referable
to the defendant being unab>ie o appear due to his imprisonment, and | do not criticise him for this. After Télease from gaol, another eight months
passed between thefiling of the Transfer Motion and the hearings before me, during which time the hearing of the Trainsfer Motion was adjourned
four times. Whilst the defen<iant went back to gaol in August 2018, he was able to appear before me by wideo link on both occasions in September
2018.

68. The proceduralhistory &7 the Transfer Motion, and indeed the proceedings generally, indicate that tse defendant hag engaged in significant
‘ducking and weaving’ in reSpect of the Transfer Motion in general and the Hard Drive in particular. The ciefendant has from time to time offered to
inspect the Hard Drive to deteSmine whether, in fact, he has any objection to general access but, ultimatezly and on each occasion, refrained from
doing so. The defemdant has. by his actions and inaction, endeavoured, it appears to me, to bring these proceedings Senerally and the Contempt
Motion in particular to a half. This is not how the procedures of the Court work.

89. At the adjoumned hearing of the Transfer Motion on 27 September 2018, the defendant had adequates notice that his motion was to be heard on
that occasion. The defendant had adequate time to prepare the motion for hearing. The defendant had trse materials on which he relied in support
of the motion with him, and Fi&d those materials since at least 11 September 2018, being the date when trse Court Book was provided to him in gaol.
He was familiar witk those materials in any event, having prepared the motion and affidavits himself seveeral months earijer. Having regard to these
circumstances, section 61(3) Ofthe Civil Procedure Act and to the “overriding purpose” in section 56 of the Act, | dismiss the Transfer Motion.

ACCESS TO THE HARD DRIVE

70. 1 am not prepared to make an order for general access to the Hard Drive as there may be material or: the Hard Drive in respect of which the
defendant may be entitled to claim client legal privilege under sections 118 or 119 of the Evidence Act 1995 (NSW).

71. In addition, by the Contempt Motion, the plaintiffs seek declarations that the defendant was in contempt of Court for breaching the non-
disclosure order made by Ward CJ in Eq on 19 April 2017 and has committed offences under section 16 of the Court Suppression and Non-
Publication Orders Act 2010 {INSW), which provides:

(1) A person commits an offence if the person engages in conduct that constitutes a contravention of a suppression order or non-
publication order and is reckless as to whether the conduct constitutes a contravention of a suppression order or non-publication
order.

Maximum penaity: 1,000 penalty units or imprisonment for 12 months, or both, for an individual or 5,000 penalty units for a body
corporate.

(2) Conduct that constitutes an offence under this section may be punished as a contempt of court even though it could be punished
as an offence.

(3) Conduct that constitutes an offence under this section may be punished as an offence even though it could be punished as a
contempt of court.

{4) If conduct constitutes both an offence under this section and a contempt of court, the offender is not fiable to be punished twice

72. In light of this, a privilege against self-incrimination must be considered, although the defendant did not seek to invoke the privilege. A witness
may object to giving evidence on the ground that the evidence may tend to provide that the witness has committed an offence or is liable to a civil
penalty. Section 128(1) of the Evidence Act 1995 (NSW) provides (emphasis added):

This section applies if & witness objects to giving particular evidence, or evidence on a particular matter, on the ground that the
evidence may tend to prove that the witness:

(a) has committed an offence against or arising under an Australian law or a faw of a foreign country, or

(b) is liable to a civil penalty.

Obviously enough, the section requires that the person claiming the privilege is the same person from whom the evidence is sought, hence, a
privilege against seff-incrimination.

73. Section 128 applies equaily to giving oral testimony and the production of documentary evidence. This reflects the common law position as
explained in Environmental Protection Authority v Caltex Refining Co Pty Ltd [1993] HCA 74; (1993) 178 CLR 477 by Mason CJ and Toohey J at
502:

...the production of documents pursuant to process of law, such as a subpoena duces tecum, involves some testimonial aspects.
Thus, by producing the documents described, the person producing them admits that the documents existed, were in his or her
possession or power and that they are authentic in the sense that they match the description which they have been given.



74. However, a pexson WO May be incriminated cannot make a claim so as to prevént another person #€vealing the incriminating information:
Cross on Evidence- flooselea, | gxjsNexis Australia) at [25075]. As Gibbs CJ and Mason and Dawson JJ explained inn Controfed Consultants Ply
Ltd v Commissionest for CorgBorate Affairs (1985) 156 CLR 385 at 393 (citations omitted);

-~ whilst theeprivileg& ... would protect a person against a requirement that he produce or identify incriminating documents or reveal
their where=bouts oF explain their contents in an incriminating fashion, it has no application to the seizure of dScuments or their use
for the purpese of inCrimination provided they can be proved by independent means. The privileg€ is not a Priviiege against
incriminatior: it is & P>Tivilege against self-incrimination. In relation to documents, the privilege agzainst self-incrirmination may be
contrasted with legal professional privilege which ... affords protection against the seizure docunrsents which fali within the ambit of
the privileges.

75. Oras Deane J explained in Carter v Northmore Hale Davy & Leake (1995) 183 CLR 121 at 140:

While the privilege agiainst seff-incrimination extends to the production of documents by the person who would be imperilled (see
Controlled Consultartts Pty | td v Commissioner for Corporate Affairs .. at 393 ..., itis difficult to see how it couid, as g matter of
principle, apsply to the production of documents by that person’s lawyer, bailee or agent since the “privilege is not a privilege against
incriminatiort it is a privilege against self-incrimination” Controlled Consultants (1985) 158 CLR 385 at 393. See, eg, Rochfort v Trade
Practices Cammissior? [1982] HCA 66; (1982) 153 CLR 134 at 145; Envirenment Protection Authority v Caftex Refining Co Pty Ltd
[1993] HCA 74; (1993} 178 CLR 477 at 504, 516, 535, 548-549; Rio Tinto Zinc Corporation v Westinghouse Electric Corporation [1978]
AC 547 at 637-638.

76. So, for example, in Microsoft Corporation v CX Computer Ply Ltd [2002] FCA 3; (2002) 116 FCR 372. Microsoft S&Tved a notice to produce on a
respondent, Natcorp, seeking production of documents which had been seized from Natcorp by the Australian Federal Police. Another respondent
Grassia, resisted production by Natcorp by reason of the privilege against self-incrimination. Lindgren J disagreed at 321 I

Nor can Grasssia comipiain about the giving of discovery or responding to the notice to produce by Natcorp on the ground that he
might tend to be incrirninated as a result, because this is not self-incrimination: cf Caltex at 490-493 per Mason G and Toohey J
548-549 per McHugh J; Garvin v Domus Publishing Lid [1989] Ch 335 at 348 (Walton J). ,

77. Similarly, in Pascoe v Divisional Security Group Ply Ltd [2007] NSWSC 211, a liquidator brought proceedings against a company and its
director for insolvensttrading. The director sought orders that the company not be required to give discovery or produce any documents as this
could expose the director to @ civil penalty. His Honour Justice White rejected this as inconsistent with the privilege against self-incrimination. At
[43]: '

This argument merely restates that making the [company] liable to compulsory process could expose the [director] to a civil penalty,
The [director] is not entitied to privilege against such exposure in that way. If, for example, there are documents in the possession of
third parties, including the [company], which would have that tendency, the plaintiffs are entitied, by a proper subpoena or order for
discovery, to obtain production of the document. In doing so, the privilege which the [director] enjoys against exposure to a civil
penally is notinfringed, because he is not being required to expose himself to a penalty. Rather, the plaintiffs would simply be
endeavouring to prove the case against him using compulsory processes of the Court against third parties.

78. Whilst section 128 concerns giving evidence at final hearing, section 87 of the Civil Procedure Act deals with the privilege against self-
incrimination in interlocutory matiers. Section 87(2) provides (emphasis added):

This section applies in circumstances in which:
(a) an application is made for, or the court makes, an order for production against & person, and

(b) the person objects to the making of such an order, or applies for the revocation of such an order, on the ground that the evidence
required by the order may tend to prove that the person has engaged in culpable conduct.

Consistently with the authorities already canvassed, section 87 requires an identity between the person from whom the documents are sought and
the person claiming the privilege against self-incrimination.

79. In this case, the Hard Drive was produced in answer to the Subpoena on the Commissioner of Police and the defendant is not called upon to
produce it or say anything about its provenance or contents. Consequently, the defendant does not have a privilege against self-incrimination in
respect of the production of the Hard Drive by the Commissioner of Police.

80. How then can the Court proceed in the circumstances? Even if the defendant were minded to inspect the Hard Drive, a regime would need to
be in place to ensure the safe custody of the Hard Drive and its contents. It is not readily apparent to me how this can be achieved in
circumstances where the defendant is in gaol and, as | understand it from what he told me, will be for some time. Whilst the defendant could give
instructions to a legal practitioner in respect of what records on the Hard Drive may be privileged, he does not have legal representation.

81. Rule 31.54(1) of the UCPR provides:

In any proceedings, the court may obtain the assistance of any persons specially qualified to advise on any matter arising in the
proceedings and may act on the advisor's opinion.



82. Two examples ndicate wherg appiication of this rule may be appropriate. In ‘%gng Shire Council v #Neuman [200:8] NSWSC 1295, Macready
AsJ appointed a pesson 10 @Ssist him fo effectively test the evidence of four competing expert witnesses ©N @ technical matter. The cas;e concernet
whether a product Baown s Enyir-o-Agg complied with detailed specifications in a contract to rehabilitaté 12nd fill andl construct sports fields, The
person so appointesd sat With Macready AsJ on the bench during the hearing and cross-examined the exgerts after others had Crcss-examfn.ed
them, and assisted Macready As, to collate the evidence but not to express any opinion on the subject ryiatter of the Nearing: at [16).

83. In Ingot Capitasinvestments y Macquarie Equity Capital Markets (No 7) [2008] NSWSC 199, McDougall J considered numerous question of
costs arising from s HONOUT's determination of the substantive proceedings between the parties. Some ©f the parties sought orders that costs be
paid in a gross sum3.His HOMour ohserved at [245]:

I have to saythat | feelless than fully qualified to decide questions of quantification of costs, as opposed to questions of principle that
may arise bfore or i the course of quantification. One course might be to refer the question of geantification (should it arise)to a
referee. Thatcourse will certainly lead to prolongation and further expense. Another course might be to appoint an expert to inquire
into and repeart oN @any issyes that are unresolved between the plaintiffs and any defendant on the question of gross sum costs. That
again wouldi lead to prolongation and further expense, but would give the Court independent assistance on what are likely to be very
difficult quesions. A third course might be to make an order under UCPR Rule 31.54 for the Court to obtain the assistance of an
appropriate specially qualified person to advise on the questions in dispute. If that were done, | would envisage the appointment of a
qualified cosis consuttant or costs assessor, who would consider all of the material relied upon by the parties, provide assistance to
me in relatican to the matters in dispute (which assistance of course would be disclosed to enable the parties to =ddress it), and who
would sit with me in effect as an assessor.

His Honour invited Ehe parties fo consider which of these courses were most suitable.

84. it seems to me hat an order under rule 31.54(1) is appropriate in this case to identify documents in respect of which the defendant may be
entitied to claim client legal privilege. From time to time, Sylvia Fernandez, a solicitor and partner of Thomison Geer, has been appointed by the
Court to undertake he role of the independent solicitor in the execution of search warrants issued by the Court. In this Capacity, Ms Fernandez has
served orders, supexvised searches and taken custody of items seized under the orders. Ms Fernandez has reviewed information stored on
technology devices 1o determine material that may fall into particular categories or that may belong to a third party. Ms Fernandez informs me that
she has no conflict, that is, neither she nor her firm have previously acted in matters concermning the plaintiffs or the defendant. | propose to appoint
Ms Fernandez to inspect the Hard Drive and identify any documents over which the defendant may be entitled to claim Client legal privilege.

85. The contents of the Hard Drive may not be used by the plaintiffs otherwise than for the purposes of the conduct of the proceedings, except by
leave of the court, unless the document has been received into evidence in open court: Hearne v Street [2008] HCA 386; (2008) 235 CLR 125:
Harman v Secretary of State for the Home Department [1983] 1 AC 280; Blanch v Deputy Commissioner of Taxation [2004] NSWCA 461 at [5), per
Giles JA (with whornHodgson and Ipp JJA agreed).

86. The question of costs was not canvassed with the parties. in the event that either party seeks a costs order in their favour, they may file and
serve written submissions in support of the order they seek within 7 days, failing which costs are reserved.

ORDERS

87. | make the foliowing orders:

. {1) Dismiss the defendant’s application for a stay of the proceedings.

. (2) Pursuant to Sexction 61(3) of the Civil Procedure Act 2005 (NSW), dismiss the defendant’s motion filed on 12 January 2018.

. (3) Pursuant to Rule 31.54 of the Uniform Civil Procedure Rules 2005 (NSW), appoint Sylvia Fernandez, solicitor, of Thomson Geer to provide
assistance in these proceedings as follows:

. {(a) uplift packet S-5 (the Hard Drive) from the Exhibits Office;

. (b) inspect the contents of the Hard Drive and identify any records to which the defendant may be entitied to claim client legal privilege under
section 118 or 119 of the Evidence Act 1985 (NSW);

- (c) copy the records identified in (b) onto an electronic storage device to be clearly labelled “Privileged Data: No access is to be granted without
leave of the Court”;

. {d) copy any remaining records on the Hard Drive to a second electronic storage device to be clearly labelled “Available Data: gene}'al access
pursuant to orders made on 7 December 2018”;

. (e) return the Hard Drive to the Exhibits Office; and

. {f) provide to the Court by 28 February 2019:

. {i) the two electronic storage devices described in (c) and (d); and

. (i) a report as to hiow the task described in this Order was completed.

. (4) Grant the plaintifis access to the electronic storage device labelled “Available Data: general access pursuant to orders made on 7 December
2018" on and from 1 March 2019.

. (5) Order the plaintiffs in the first instance to pay Ms Fernandez’ costs of attending to the task referred to in Order (3).

. {8) Costs are reserved.
wRRk Rtk kd

Amendments

10 December 2018 - Amend hearing date
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF AUSTRALIA
SYDNEY REGISTRY No. of20

BETWEEN: Shane Dowiling
Applicant

and

10
Seven Network (Operations)

First Respondent
Seven West Media Limited
Second Respondent

EXHIBIT “C”

20
This is the exhibit marked “C” produced and shown to Shane Dowling at the time

of affirming his affidavit this 14/5/19.

Affidavit of Shane Dowling sworn 2 March 2018 in the Capilano Honey v Shane
Dowling matter. Has witness statement of Chris D’Aeth, Rebel Kenna and
Detective Kristijan Juric and offending email

Before me

30

_____ QL (05

SefisitorlJustice of the Peace

(Ms) Deborah Anne Phillips
A Justice of the Peace in and for
the State of New South Wales
Reg. No. 223899



Form 40 (version 3)
UCPR 351

6

AFFIDAVIT OF SHANE FRANCIS DOWLING - 2 March 2018

COURT DETAILS

Court

Division

List

Registry

Case number

TITLE OF PROCEEDINGS
First plaintiff

Second plaintiff

Defendant

FILING DETAILS

Filed for
Filed in relation to

Legal representative

Contact name and telephone

Contact email

Supreme Court of New South Wales
Common Law

Defamation

Sydney

2016/299522

Capilano Honey
Ben McKee

Shane Dowling

Shane Dowling - Defendant
Affidavit supporting recusal application

Self-represented

Shane Dowling — 0411 238 704

shanedowling@hotmail.com
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Name Shane Dowiing

Address 714 Park Parade Bondi Beach 2028
Oceupation Journalist

Dale 2 March 2018

| affirm:

I publish the website Kangaroo Court of Australia,

Below is the witness statement of Chris D'Aeth — Principle Registrar for the
Supreme Court of NSW in the matter R V Shane Dowiing

The next witness statement is Detective Kristiian Juric
The next witness statement is Rebe] Kenhna

Then there are 2 arficles from my website Kangaroo Court of Australia

ATy
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STATEMENT OF A WITNESS
In thy mittet of; | Toisstening emal —
Place; 1 r;}gygit;';aﬁtiigi;cg_" e~ ; —_—
Date:  [ozozrorr ' T
Name: | . T Chris D'Acth ‘. -_ _ ' : . j

STATES:

1. This statement made by ‘me aécurately sets out the evidence that! would be préparad, if

’ necessary, to give in tourt as & withess. The statement s true to the best oF my k{qow;a‘dgg and
bellef énd | make It knowing that, if it s tendered in evidence, | wiil be lable to prosscution if |
have wilfully stated In it ariything that 1 know to be false, or do not belleve to be trus.

2. lam 41 years of gge.

3. 1am the executive director and pringlpel Registrar for the Supreme Court of New South Wales,
I have been paifoiming this rolé within the Supreme Court in Sydney since Octobér2015.

4. My duties, include pﬁm’ar‘ily administiation of court Processes, fialson with Judils] officers and
the depariment of Justics.

5. Onthe 6" September 2016 | was forwarded an emall from Rebel KENNA « Prothonotary of
the Supreme Court of New South Wakes. This email wes fitied FW: Fasdophye Judge lisi to
be sent o the AFP, Australian Crime Comphission , NSW Crime Commission, gnd Royal
Commmissioh into Ghild Abuse foy Investigatiori.

6. Jread this this email and | thought it was deeply offensive io'the persqns fistey Within the emai
I tiote the email fo was addressed to Judges and registrars of fiie Stipreme Court

7. The email contained information regarding the reciplents beirig either known or suspected

paedophiles. | noted that the emall was sent from Shanedowiiha@holmiail.com, |. recoghisad

the hame Shane Dowling froin the courts, he has emalled the courts on previoye oogasions. |
was also aware of a wébsite he confrols called Kangaroo Court of Austrafia, | am eyvare that-
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T ] Statement of | Chriz BAezh -
e, .. _In the matter of Emal fiom Shane DOWLinGg _ ,
this webpage cohtains Information about thie Courts arid judiclal registrasrs, 1 js o blog thet he
ring and controls, |

8. Onthe g® Septembir 2016 | forwarded this emall to Jillian CALDWELL — Speclel Counsel for
the Crown Solisitor. Contained within the emali to Jillian | wrote to ﬁer‘rquasﬁng the emaji-be
reviewed'and advice on staps forward. { havé since forwarded this smell. traff to Detective
Senilor Goristable Kristiah JURIC of Sydney Clty Lota) Area Comrand,

: Justice , The Henourable Tom Bethurst AC, After this discussion izent Juﬁan_,gnoﬂ,a emall
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20-10°17 09:22 FROM-  SYDNEY CITY DETS 02-9265-6488 =003 PO00S/0058 F-750
NSWPOLCEFORCE. . . P190B
STATEMENT OF POLIGE
—M— 5 e
Inthematterof:  Polics V- Shane DOWLING (Telecommunicatishs Offence
Plase: Sydney City Detectives Office -
Date: 23 July 2017
Name; Kristjan JURIC Tel. No: 0282655470
Rank: Deteclive Senior Constable
Station/Unit: Sydney City Datectives Office

STATES:

1.

This stalement made by me accurately sels ot the evidence that | would ba prepared, i
neeeasary,to’giveiﬁcumssauﬁm.Thestatemeniisirue{othahastnfmyknmwge end
belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered In evidence, !wiﬁbeﬁ&le!npmmmoni_n
have wilfully stated in Ranytﬁngihafikmwtabefalse,ordonalbeﬁevetobe!rue. '

lam 38 years of age.

In making this statement | have refrashed my memory by viewing NSW Polics COPS case
number CE28645605,

On the 8" of September 2016, Detective Senior Sergeant Day handed me a raport from the
Crown Solicitors Office of NSW relsting to an alfleged telecommunication offence, sitached to
this repori was & emeil sent from email address shanedowined cory on the 8% of

Sty D ROTMAI 0
Seplember 2018, with subject *Paedophiie Judges fisted to be sent Io the AFP, Australizn
Grime Commission, NSW Crime Commission and Royal Commission into Child Sexual Abuse
for Investigation®,
I NOW PRODUCE COPY OF THE ENAIL SENT FROM EMAIL ADDRESS

SHANEDOWLING@HOTMAIL.COM ON THE 6™ OF SEPTEMBER 2016.

Wilhese: ‘_ﬁ’ Signature:
Glenn BOREHAM JURIC ,

Detective Senior Constabie . Detective Senier Constabie
Sydney City Detectives Office Sydney City Detectives Office
23 July 2017 23 July 2017
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20-10-17 09:22 FROMW- SYDNEY CITY DET: 02-8285-8488 - T-008  POD0S/0058 F-720

.ﬁhﬁw‘.Twmam sl oo B
Nwml Puiﬁihmﬁh“wm{g:ﬁm mm |
Sebjact: FW: sant to the AFP, Ausiraian Drime Commission, Commission ang
fey2! Commission Into Child Sexual Abusa for | s
o o5 20161585 P

i (i SH SOV AOHiree. N gor.s .

SO e S e o, A ot ot
Roral Commission Into Chld Sexual Abiuse for fovestigation

Dear Chief Justioe Bathurst, Justice Hoeben, Justice Prigs, Justioe Simpeon other judpes

Known paedophlles

cmefm‘raﬁaa&m-mwmpmam
Jmmgﬁmﬁs‘v@m& = ofthe NSW Distri

u tprome Covrt (He Is aleo Chief Judgs of the lstrict Co
Justice Carolyn Simpson - NSW Supreme Gourt - m’

1

e
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20-10-"17 08:22 FROW- SYDNEY CITY DETS 02-8265-6468 T-003  PO0T0/0058 F-750

.i.

wludge Richerd Cogewall~ NSW Distict Court
Judge Gany Nelison — NSW District Cour . -

Wagistrate Doug Dick — NSW Magistrates Gourt
Suspected paedophites ’

Justice tan Hardson - NSW Supreme Couwt
Justice Lucy McCallum - NSW Supreme Court

i you &ré not on the list bsu’fheva evidance of peedophile judges, please oonfagt me on the defali
balow.

Mwmmmmmmmmmmmmm«wmx
yeu have evidence of judical bribery, plesse contact me ASAPR,

Regards
"Simebwﬂng ”
Ph0411 238 704

F_'iﬂ""mm'h-ﬁn_—,mr—b—-m i
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20-10-*17 09:23 FROM- SYDNEY CITY DETS 02-8265-6466 T-005 P0O11/0058 F-720

Statement of Kristian JURIC i

In the matter of Police -V- Shane DOWLING ({Telscommunications
Dfisnes)

5. &ommmmmhmmmemmﬁ%mm3mm}ﬂﬂ
fnrram'ng&boysbyNswsunmmecuuﬁsJusﬁeeHaeben’mbﬁsﬂdmthBKﬂﬂﬂmﬂCWﬂ
of Australia webpage,

| NOW PRODUCE COPY OF ARTICLE PAEDOPHILE PRIEST GETS & MONTHS JAIL FOR
RAPING 3 BOYS BY NSW SUPREME COURT'S JUSTICE HOEBEN PUBLISHED ON THE
m&mmum&ummuamu WEBSITE.

8. During mquueMenqulriealcmmedmacrmVnSomrsmﬂmﬁNswmob!am
contacle detalls of the persons named In the emall and arficle, As a result of thass engulres on
the B” of March 2017, Rehe!!(ENNAaﬂandstydmycﬁyPoﬁasStaﬁmanﬂsmpﬂeda
siatement, '

7. Onthe 24® of April 2017, | created and submitted LASK_7785005 sesking fo obtain the
suhseriber delails for moblie phane number 0411238704, which was the number fisled in the
emall senf and Kangaroo Caurt of Australia article as contact for Shane DOWLING.

8. Onthe 1" of May 2017, | crested and submittes IASK_7795383 seeking to obtain the
subseriber detalns for P address 121,208.47.68, linked to email address
dowds tmai
8. Onthe 2% of May 2017, mmmmsn_mm,masmmﬂmubsmfw
mobile phone number 04112238704 being Shane DOWLING.

| NOW PRODUCE COFY OF THE IASK_7785008 RESULT IDENTIEYING THE
SUBSCRIBER DETAILS FOR MOBILE PHOEN NUMBER 04112238704

10. On the 117 of May 2017, result for IASK_7785368, refurned e resull with the subscriber for [P
 addiess 121.209'47.66 being Shane DOWLING. T :

I NOWPRODUCE COPY OF THE 1ASK_7795363 RESULT IDENTIFYING THE
SUBSCRIBER DETAILS FOR IP ADDRESS 121,208.47.68.

Withees: ‘—-——S:? Signature:

Glenn BOREHAM jawdURIC ’

Dateclive Sendor Constable Detedlive Senior Constsbis
Sydney Ghy Detectives Office Syaney Ciiy Detectives Office
23 July 2017 23 July 2017

Page 205
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20-10-"17 09:26 FROM- SYDKEY CITY DETS 02-8285-6488 T-003  P0O23/0058 F~730

Statsment of Kristjan JURIC
in the matter of Pd‘m-?-&mmmmﬁmlﬂhﬁom
Offence)

11.About 8;00am on Wednesday the 21% of June 2017, 1 conducied 8 briefing at Bong! Beach

Street Palice Station later this aftamoon,

186. About 5:15pm this day, 1 walked up to DOWLING who was seated in the reception area of Day
Street Police Station and arrested him. As | was expleining to BOWKING what was happening
Detective Senior Constable HAMMERTON afeo &pproathad me and DOWLING. Delective

Wtfnesa: v——% Signature:
Glenn BOREHAM #fian <

Delsctive Senisr Constable Deisctive Senior Constable
Sydney City Detsctives Office Sydney City Detectives Office
23 July 2017 23 July 2017
Page3efs
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20-10-"17 08:28 From- SYDNEY CITY DETS 02-8265-8468 =008 P0024/0058 F-730

Statement of Kristjan JURIC

In the mattsr of Police \- Shane DOWLING (Teleeammunications
Oifence)

Senitr Conslable HAMMERTON and | escorted DOWLING aut of the reception area, down
James Lanpandhtothea:shdymnfﬂﬁpdimstaﬁm

17..Qnce DOWLING wes entered into custody, Detective Senior Constable HAMMERTON and |
escoried DOWLING from ths custody area and into an Interview room. Detective Senicr
Constable HAMMERTON and | conductad an elecironlcally recorded Interview with DOWLING,

18. During the Interview sll questions asked by Detective Senior Constaiye HAMMERTON and me
along with any snswers and comments made by DOWLING were electranically recordad,
recording number RO4R5348,

| NOW PRODUCE TRANSCRIPTION OF ELECTRONICALLY RECORDED INTERVIEW,
RECORDING NUMBER R0486318.

1. At the complation of the Intervisw Detective Senior Constable HAMMERTON snd | escorted
DOWLING from the interview room, back to the custody area. 1 then loft the custody area ang
attended to the charging process.

20.On Tuesday the 4™ of July 2017, | inspected 2l of the exhibits selzed at DOWLING's residence
during e search warrant, During this time | viewed exhibit numbar X0002485804, belng § letters
from Telstra addressed to DOWLING with account number 2000 14257 3307,

I NOW PRODUCE COFY OF 8 TELSTRA LETTERS ADDRESSED TO DOWLING
RELATING TO TELSTRA AGCCOUNT NUMBER 2000 11257 3387,

copled this file off the HP laptop onto = 16GG, red and biack eolour imstion brang USE.

Wieer e sguies
. Glenn BOREHAM iTgan JURIC

Deteclive Senior Constabis Datective Senfor Consiable
Sydney Cily Detactives Office Sydnay City Detectives Office
23 July 2017 23 July 2017

Page 4 ofs
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20~10~"17 08:81 FRoM- SYDNEY CITY DETS 02-8265-8466 008 POO/0055 F~730

Statementof Kristjan JURIC
In the matter of Police -V- §hane DoOwLING {Telscommunteetions
Offance)

I NOW PRODUCE A COPY OF DOCUMENT NAMED CHIEF JUSTICE BATHURST _

PAEDOPHILE JUDGES ~ 7 SEPTEMBER 2016.PDF OBTAINED FROM EXHIBIT
X0002485202 BEING THE HP LAPTOP COMPUTER. '

22. At 2:00pm this day | completed reviewing exhibit X00024856025, | placed the Hp laplop back
into the exhibit bag and sesied i, | then altended fo other dufles.

Witness: -—Se== Signature;
Glann BOREHAM n c

Detective Senlar Constebie Deieclive Sanipr Conslable
Sydnay City Detectives Office Sydney Cliy Detectives Office
23 July 2017 28 July 2017
PageSefg
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20-10-"17 09:32 FROM- SYDNEY CITY DETS 02-5265-6466 T-008 PU%E/DOB&_F—?SO

STATEMENT OF A WITNESS

erof:  Police -V- Shane DOWLING |

:  Sydnéy Chy Detectives Office :
__ 08March2017 - - C ‘
» il Ra‘bel KENNA J
TATES: '

1. “This stetement mads by me gccufately-sets out the evidence that | wouid be prepared, If

necessary, t6 give in cowrt as ammss The etatement is true fo the besz'cfmykriawadge and
ﬁuﬁmam:mammmanﬁmﬁaamamwm.:mlbgnaugwwoﬁm
mwwstammmm&u;mawtobem,wqomnemmbgm.

2 Iamss_ya?sofaga. : s
s. lamﬁnrkirﬁ'aéabﬁ‘e&u_rsﬁdProtﬁm&ar;for?he&tq:m@ﬁofw.fha\eha_enﬁ\

this role For the:past 18.monihe. As part of my dutiss | manage the regletrate, bring eantemp
proceedings, | lso bring procesdings to-have sificitors removed from the roll and | am aleo &
secretary of the rules commifies a8 el si it court and oversee court matters befors s,

4. About 5:20pi on iﬁ;'ﬁ‘&&bﬁmbq;’m!‘;‘. 1 was sliting at my desk in my.offioe and reviewing

iy emalls wiien | noticed sn sal frm Shane Dm%hww&mhﬁnﬂm il
WMWMMMMWWMZOEmdaaeond_lnz{n_s.'wamhidﬂ
mmmmmmmmmm Duﬁngthessmaﬁwamswas
vary abusive foward mis and one beoasion's ha cafled e corrupt, sisazy and simy ahd turing
ane incident{ even hag to.réquest thie Shariffs ramove DOWLING frém my caurt rodm due 1o )
His abusive behaviour, - - - * '

+ "ATUNG 5:20pm, | opened the emall and read through 1, the eifial wes migking allegafion that
ceiain udaes, Magisirafas and Repietrars e paedophilas and i hgludeci_:nam'e:.mf individusi
Judges, Maglstrates ang Registra[_s, intluding mine. The emaj! alao threalened o have alf of

Witness: # e _- sgnatre: VA L4 0\
G Rebel KENNA

an 3 .
Detéctive Sanior Consiabls
WGRYDBWM’O!HDB

08 March 2017
08 March 2047 - ‘
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6 Below is & copy of the email Chris D'Aeth refers to in his witness statement and the
articie that it appears on my website which was published on the 8" of September
20186. The email and ariicle are part of the police brief of evidenice before the court,
There is nc suppression order on any of the evidence bafore the court.

PAEDOPHILE PRIEST GETS 3
MONTHS JAIL FOR RAPING 3
BOYS BY NSW SUPREME
COURT’S JUSTICE HOEBEN

| have seen some scandalous and corrupt judgements but | can't remember any worse than
paedophile catholic priest Father Robert Flaherty being sentenced in August 20160 a non-parole
period of 3 months jail for abusing and raping 3 boys. itis plainly obvious that the judges involved
need fo be investigated themselves.

I have collated a list of paedophile judges and suspected paedophile judges below and emailed
the list to all the NSW Supreme Court judges giving them an opportunity to respond before | -
published their names. | am also in the process of sending a formal complaint to the relevant
authorities regarding paedophiles in the judiciary and not all my evidence is in this article but 1 wiil
focus on making a fair and reasonable case against the 4 judges in the Father Flaherly matier.

The rest of the evidence | wiil publish at the relevant time although | have published plenty before

such as an article in 2014 titled: “Premier Mike Baird & Chief Justice Bathurst fail io act on

paedaophile supporier Judge Gany Neilson*,

Paedophlle Magistrate Peter Liddy — Jailed for 25 years in 2001

Most people find it hard to believe that there are paedophile judges but the first Australian judicial
officer jailed was South Australian magistrate Peter Liddy who is still in jail today. It was reporied
in 2001:

“Former South Australian Magistrate, Peter Liddy, continues to make Australian legal history. In
June he became the first Australian Judicial officer convicted of child sex crimes. And today he
was given a 25 year sentenice — believed fo be the longest senfence handed down to any
paedophile."(Click here to read more)

Y
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Paedophile Magistrate Peter Liddy

Father Robert Fizheriy
In February 2016 Father Flaherty was jailed for 2 years and 3 weeks with a non-parole period of 6
moniths by the NSW District Courf's Judge Richard Cogswell, SC for sexually abusing 3

boys. (Click here to read more)
The church had allowed Father Flaherty to move from parish to parish even though they knew he

had abused boys.

As you would expect the prosecution appealed because the sentence was a joke. The appeal
was heard in the NSW Court of Criminal Appeal by Justice Hoeben, Justice Price and Justice
Simpson with Hoeben being the senior judge. What did they do? They decreased the sentence to

2 years with a non-parole period of 3 months. (Click here to read the éummagg of the judgement)

Father Flaherty's lawyers did the big sob story that he suffered numerous health issues and only
had & to 12 months to live. Half the criminals before the courts argue similar things and they don't
get reduced sentences.

To put it in perspective how scandalous the Father Flaherty matter is i is worth comparing i to
anether recent appeal involving Bega paedophile Maurice Van Ryn. Mr Van Ryn was sentericed
1o 7 years jail by Judge Clive Jeffreys for abusing 9 children. The court of appeal increased it to
13 years 8 months and said Judge Jeffreys judgment was: so manitestly inadequale it amounted
to "an affront to the administration of criminal justice”. (Click here to read the full judoment) Just
for the record the 3 appeal judges in the Van Ryn matter were Justice Leeming, Johnson and

Hulme.

Compare the 13 1/2 years jail for Van Ryn to the 2 years Jail with & non-parole period of 3 months
for Father Flaherty and it is not too hard to work out something is badly wrong. It seems to be

A na
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wEwn there is little media coverage the judges take advantage of it and do what they want as Van
Rynwas very high-profile yet Father Flaherty did not get much media coverage for some reason,
Judjes supporting Paedophiles with grossly inadequate sentencing has been a long-term
proliem and can ohly mean one thing and that is there are numerous judges who are themselves
pa<iophiles. Former federal Senator Bill Heffernan said last year that he was in possession of 3
list & high-profile paedophiles which included judges that he received from a federal law
enfiacement agency and when judges hand down lenient Sentences than those judges should
cor: nder suspicion until there is a public enquiry.

Wha makes the Flaherty matter even more scandalous is the fact that it has happened while

thereis a Royal Commission into Child Sexual Abuse in progress costing hundreds of millions of

dollars and NSW Supreme Court judges have said we do not care and we are untouchable. But
they are not untouchable from this website naming them and the court of public opinion.

- T

Justice Ciff Hoeben, Chief Judge at Common Law, NSW Supreme Court
Belowis the email | sen to Chief Justice Tom Bathurst and all of the other NSW Supreme Court

judges.

From: Shane Dowiing [maiitoBhanedowling@hoimai!_com]

Sent: Tuesday, 6 September 2016 11:35 PM

To: victoria_bradshaw@courts.nsw.guv.au; chambers.president@courts.nsw.gov.au;

dorothy _yon@courts.nsw.gov.au: maree_haﬂand@courts.nsw.gov.au;

chambem.macfaﬁan}a@courts.nsw.gov.au: msh_beazzey@courts,nsw.gov-au;

moma_lynch@couns.nsw.gov.au; giorgina_kotevski@courts.nsw.gov.au;

jasmine ._geary@courts.nsw.gov.au: chambers.gleesanja@courts.nsw.gov.au;

mambers.feemmsgja@courts,nsw.gov.au; lynn_nieisen@murts.nsw.gov.au;

adam_zwi@courts.nsw.gov.au; kim _pitt@courts.nsw.gov.au;

cheryl .schofﬁeﬂ@murts.nsw.gov.au; karen_adams@couns.nsw.gav.au;

linda.head@couds.nsw.gou.au; renee_ingrey@courts.nsw.gov.au; M
rd
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carla_wilson@couns.nsw.gov.au: maria_heraghly@ocwls.nsw.gov.au;
chanbers.johnsonj@courts.nsw.gov.au; margaret_gaertner@courts.nsw.gov.au;
katmrine__moroney@courts.nsw.gov.au; jacqui.gray@justice.nsw.gov.au;
charrbers.breretonj@eomts.nsw.gov.au; lisa_freeman@courts.nsw.gov.au;
oo}teen_suﬁon@couds.nsw.gov.au; bemadeﬂe_heymod@courts.nsw.gov,au;
kate_moore@couris.nsw.gov.au; charnbers.mcca{lwnj@couﬁsmw.gw-au;
sa!ty_mccrossin@courts.nsw.gov.au; carol_lloyd@courts.nsw.gov.au:
dianbem.siaﬁerw@courts.nsw.gov.au; anita_singh@courts.nsw.gov.au:
cimlbers.smnﬂdtj@couﬁsmw.gov.au; sue_page@courts.nsw.gov.au;
maﬁa__kourﬁs@courts.nsw.gov.au: chambers.garlingj@oouns.nsw.gov.au;

catheine _young@courts.nsw.gov.au: margaret.smith2@courts.nsw.gov.au;
anne_cochrane@courts.nsw.gov.au; barbara_ruicens@courts.nsw.gov.au;
megan_grace@courts.nsw.gov.au; lauren_channells@courts.nsw.gov.au; chambers.beech-
fonesJ@courts.nsw.gov.au: POPpPY_xenakis@courts.nsw.gov.au; sara_bond@couris.nsw.gov.au:

shari wi!!igms@go_urts.nm.gov.au

Subject: Paedophile Judge fist to be sent to the AFP, Australian Crime Commission, NSW Crime
 Commission and Royal Commission into Child Sexual Abuss for investigation

Dear Chief Justice Bathurst, Justice Hoeben, Justice Price, Justice Simpson other judges

I am wiiting to you all regarding the fist of paedophiie judges that | intended on making a formal
complaint about to the AFP, Australian Crime Commission, NSW Crime Commission and Royal
Commission into Child Sexual Abuse. The list is below.

Known paedophiles
Chief Justice Tom Bathurst - NSW Supreme Court

Justice Clifton Hosben — NSW Supreme Court
Justice Derek Price — NSW Supreme Court (He is also Chief Judge of the NSW District Court)

Justice Carolyn Simpson - NSW Supreme Court
Judge Richard Cogswell — NSW District Court

Judae Garry Neilson — NSW District Court

Magistrate Doug Dick — NSW Magistrates Court

Suspected paedophiles

Justice lan Harrison — NSW Supreme Court

Justice Lucy McCallum — NSW Supreme Court

Justice Peter Hall — NSW Supreme Court

Justice Miébael Adams — NSW Supreme Court

‘Acting Justice Henric Nicholas — NSW Supreme Court (now retired)

Acting Justice Robert Hulme — NSW Supreme Court

Justice David Davies — NSW Supreme Court M
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Justice Peter Gading — NSW Supreme Court
Justice Stephen Campbel] - NSW Supreme Court

Reyistrar Rebel Kenna — NSW Supreme Court

Reyistrar Christopher Bradford — NSW Supreme Court

If wou are on the list and would like a right of reply to deny that you are a paedophile and argue
thal you should not be on the list, please email me by close of business Wednesday the 7th of
Sejtember 2016. | will also likely publish the list on my website, if you would like me to publish a
repy please send me one by 5pm Wednesday the 7th of September.

If you are not on the list but have evidence of paedophile judges, please contact me on the
detzils below.

As we all know corruption in the NSW Courts is widespread and systemic. In July 2015 Fairfax
Medi and the ABC's Four Comers program reported that NSW judges had been bribed $2.2
millfon by the Mafia which was confirmed by Justice David Davies in December 2015, Maybe you
have evidence that the above judges have also benefited from the Mafia bribes or other bribes. If
you have evidence of judicial bribery, please contact me ASAP.

Regards
Share Dowling

Email end
No one has responded just the same as they all shut their mouths last year when Fairfax Media

and the ABC’s Four Comers exposed NSW Judges for taking bribes of $2.2 million from the

Mafiza.(Click here to read more)

Summary

The Father Flaherty matter has happened in an environment where the NSW Attomey-General
has claimed there will be harsher taws for child abusers:

“The New South Wales Govemnment is planning to introduce Iife sentences for child sex offenders

and paedophiles.”
‘NSW Attorney General Gabrielle Upton will introduce new lsgislation this week increasing the
maxifmum sentence for sexual intercourse with a child under 10 from 25 years fo life

imprisonment. ” (Click here to read more) '

And has happened where NSW Attorney General Gabrielle Upton also had two specialist Jjudges
&ppointed to the District Court to hear child sexusl assault cases across the state.” (Click here to

read more)
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Doen’t seem like the NSW Attorney General Gabrielle Upton is achieving a much.

In the next week or so | will make & formal complaint as | have flagged above but before then
plese email me or write in the comment section below any evidencs that you might have
régirding child abusers in the judiciary whieh | might add to the complaint.

Please use the Twitter, Facebook and email etc. buttons below and help promote this post.

Kamgaroo Court of Australia is an independent website and is reliant on donations to keep
pubilshing. If you would like to support the continuance of this site, please click on the button
betow to donate via PayPal or go to the donations page for other donation options. (Click here to

go othe Donations page)

If youwould like to follow this website, you can by email notification at the top right of this page
and about twice a wesk you will be notified when there is a new articie.

Thank you for your support.
Share this;

Below is an article published on the 10/2/2018

CAPILANO HONEY CEO BEN

MCKEE CAUGHT ON VIDEO
TALKING ABOUT SEXWITH A

STAFF MEMBER TO
OPPOSING PARTY

Below is the video that Capilano Honey, Ben McKee and their lawyers are desperately trying to
have destroyed to help them win a defamation case against me (Shane Dowling). In the video
Ben McKee talks about sex with a staff member to Simen Mulvany, who is an opposing party to
Capilano and Ben McKee in a separate dsfamation case, during settlement negotiations.
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The bottom line is that Capilanc Honey and their CEO Ben McKee sued Simon Mulvany who was
regularly writing about their honey being poisonous. | wrote about the lawsuit and the transcript of
whist Ben McKee said on the “sex video™ and they sued me. Then they fried to have Simon
Muilvany destroy the video so | couldn’t prove what Ben McKee said on the video and they could
wintheir defamation case against me. But they left 2 paper trail of what they have been doing and
now Capilano Honey, Ben McKee and their lawyers are in a lot of trouble.

What Ben McKee said in the video is bad but what is a Iot worse is the attempt to have the video
destoyed to help win the court case as it is an attempt to destroy evidence and pervert the
course of justice and | will be making a complaint to the police in the near future,

In the below video Ben McKee was trying to negotiate a setfiement with Simon Mulvany and he
knew he was being recorded for a documentary, so it was a very off thing to say. There is also
anotrer video below of Capilano Honey's and Ben McKee’s barrister Sandy Dawson threatening
Simon Mulvany if he does not delete evidence on his Facebook page and also calling me 2 dog
eventhough | had nothing to do with their matter. _

Ben McKee is one very weird person and blatantly not sultable as a CEO of any company. |
understand Capilano have admitted spending $millions of shareholders money trying to close
down Simon Mulvany's and my reporting of their dodgy business practices.

(Click here for 2 longer version of the video) '

Capllano Honey and Ben McKee v Simon Mulvany

The case it still before the court and Capilano Honey and Ben McKee having been dragging the
case out as long as they can. It is 2 typical SLAPP lawsuit which Cavilzno Honey shareholder
Kerry Stokes is famous for.

Capilano Honey and Ben McKee v Shane Dowling
fwrote an article on the 17th of September 2016 titled “Australia’s Capilano Honey admit selling
toxic and poisonous honey to consumers" about Capilano suing Simon Mulvany and said;
Cepilano Honey are putting the lives of A ustralians at risk by knowingly selling honey that js full of
antibictics, toxins, iradiated polfen from China and alkaloids. Capifano are also deliberately
concealing from consumers the fact that a large percentage of their honey is imporied from

China, Mexico, Argentina {where they have a factory), Hungary and Brazil,

Capilano, who promote themselves as 100% Australian, are so worried about being exposed they
Instituted frivolous and vexatious defaration proceedings in February 2016 against whistiebiower
and consumer activist Simon Mulvany sesking a gag order to try to silence him, Mr Mulvany runs
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& Faebook page “Save The Bees Australia® and a website called “Bee the Cure” focused on

heah and safety issues with Honey and the Bee industry.

The tourt case has backfired badly as Australian and Chinese media have reported on the case
andf low Capilano are refusing to file their Staterment of Claim and will not communicate with Mr
Mufviny's lawyers which means the case will be thrown out because Capilano are failing fo
prost:ute their case. This is in effect an admission by Capilano Honey that what Simon Mulvan y

has teen saying is true and cormect. (Click here to read more)

1 wrok a follow-up article on 25th of September titled “Channe/ Seven, Capifano Honey
and /ddisons Lawyers involved in judicial favors scam" (Click here to read)

Why would the Kerry Stokes owned and controlled Channel Seven and Capilano Hone Yy use
Addisins Lawyers pertner Martin O’Conner, who does not specialise in defamation law, to sue 2
bloggrrs for defamation? Because they are up to their necks in a judicial favours scam with the
comiron link between the three being Kerry Stokes, Ryan Stokes and Addison’s partner Justine

Munsis,

Then on October the 6th 2016 | wrote an article titled “Sex tape featuring Capilanc Honey
CEO Ben McKee covered up by Directors” and | wrote;

There Is a sex tape featuning Capilano Honey CEO Ben McKee talking about having anal sex with
a femle staif member at Capilano Hone Y. AS you can see by the first email below | put questions
ahout the matter to the directors of Capilano Honey and they have so far refused to respond even
thoughit is my understanding at least 2 of the directors have seen the tape. The second email
below is from Ben McKee to Simon Mulvan y trying fo cover-up the sex tape.

What makes it very bizarre is the forum thai Ben McKee chose to make the comments. In
February 2016 Ben McKee and Capilano Honey instituted frivolous and vexatious defamnation

proceedings against bee industry whistleblower and consumer activist Simon Mulvany.

In May 2016 Ben McKee was at a meeting with Simon Mulvany o iry to conciliate an out of court
resolution in refation to the defamation case. Also at the meeting was a documentary fiimmaker
Alex who is filming a documentary with Mr Mulvan y on the bee industry. For some unexplained
reason Ben McKee thought that was an appropriate forum to talk about having anal sex with one

of the Capilano female employees. (Click here 1o read)

On the Sth of October | was sued for injurious falsehood and defamation by Capilano
Honey and their CEO Ben McKee. | wrote an articie titled “Capliano take out super-injunction io
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sileice a 2nd joumalist re: poisonous and foxic honey". (Click here to read more) and lwrote a
follow-up article on the 13th of October 2016 titled “Capilano Honey want Jjoumalist jaited for

expsing their toxic and poisonous honey". (Click here to read more)

They only sued for the article on the 17ih of September "Australia’s Capiiano Honey admit selling
toxicand poisonous honey to consumers” and the Sth of October "Sex tape feafuring Capiiano
Honey CEQO Ben McKee covered up by Directors". They never sued for the article | wrote on 25th
of September titled "Channel Seven, Capilano Honey and Addisons Lawyers invoived in Judicial
favors scam” which | take as admission by them that it is true.

Trying to have Simon Mulvany destroy the video
On June the 3rd 2017 | wrote an article titled “Capilano Honey tried to have recorded evidence of
their misogynistic CEO destroyed before court case” and said:

Capilano Honey and their CEO Ben McKee have been caught out trying to silence whistleblower
Simon Mulvany and at the same time trying to destroy a recording which is evidence for another
court case. Capilano Honey and Mr McKee attempted this b y irying fo pressure Simon Mulvany
into signing a dodgy Deed of Releass which is below.

This led to Mr Mulvany sacking his bamister and representing himself in court.

Capilano Honey is 20% owned by Kerty Stokes who seems to conirol the company even with
such a small shareholding. Mr Stokes has g habit of empioying CEQ’s who get caught in sex
scandzls and who also like to destroy evidence. In the current sex scandal involving Seven CEO
Tim Womer and former employse Amber Harrison Seven demanded Amber Hamison destroy a
mobife phone and delete data from a laptop.

Cepilano Honey and their CEQ Ben McKee started suing Simon Mulvany in February 2016

becausse Mr Mulvany wrote 2 number of posts on his Save the Bees Facebook page about
Cepilanc selling poison honey etc. The legal team used to sue Simon Mulvany are Addisons

Lawyers who are Kenry Stokes and Channel Sevens own lawyers.

Below is the Deed of Rolease that Capilano Honey and Ben McKee tried io pressure Mr Mulvany
into signing. Mr Mulvany's own barister Kieran Smark, who is also regularly on Stckes’ and
Severi’s payroll, also tried to pressure Mr Mulvan y info signing the Deed of Release. Thisis a
mejor reason why Simon Mulvany sacked his barrister Mr Smark.

The biggest issue with the Deed of Release is section 6 where they wanted Simon Mulvany to
destroy the Ben McKee sex tape which Shane Dowiing wrote about in October 2016. Their tape

A /N
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woid be key evidence in the defamation case Capilano Honey and Ben McKee has insityted
aganst Shane Dowling.

So tie bottom line is Capilano Honey, Ben McKee and the lawyers were trying %o pulry
Sirzon Mulvany into perverting the course of justice by destroying evidence.

Themost important sections ars 6.3 and 6.4 which are below and then the full Deed Of Release is
befow that. They even call section 6 ‘Dowling material and destruction ot recordirsg” which
makes it very obvious they wanted the recording destroyed to help their chances of Winning in the
Sharne Dowiing defamation case.

6.3 Mulvany will destroy the recording made on or about 26 May 2016 of any conversation
betwween him and Ben McKes (Recording) and any copy of the Recording in his possession,
6.4 further, Mulvany undertskes that should it:
(a) come lo his attention; or
(b} be brought o his attention by Capilano,

- that athird party has a copy of the Recording, he will use all reasonable endeavours o cayse
sucii recording to be destroyed forthwith, to the extent it is within his power fo do so. {(Tlick here

{0 reed more and see the full Deed of Release) (Click here of 2 PDF version of the Deed of

Releszse)

! emaied a number of questions to the Directors of Capilano Honey and they had lawyer Richarg
Keegan respond who ducked and weaved and ultimately wouldn’t answer the simple question of
why he added the "Dowling Clause” to the Deed of Release to have ihe tape destroyed. {Click

here o read the email chain)

Capifenc wanted Simon Mulvany to sign the Deed of Release on the 24/5/17. (Click here to fead
more)

The below video is barrister Sandy Dawson SC threatening Simon Mulvany with litigation going
on and on & that they will “get him” if he does not setlie the defamation case with Capilano Honey
& CEOQO Ben McKee. Sandy Dawson was also desperate for Simon Mulvany to delete a copy of .
the dodgy Deed of Release that he had uploaded to the internet the night before the phone eall.
At the beginning of the call you will hear Sandy Dawson call journalist Shane Dowiing a dog.
Capilanc and Ben McKee are also using barrister Sandy Dawson to sue Shane Dowiing who
publishes this website.

(Click here to watch the video)
Fy
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S andy Dawson obviously has personal issues with me and should not be involved iny the court
cases against me on behalf of Kerry Stokes, Seven or Capilano Honey and after !istenjng to the
phone call with the Simon Mulvany he should quite representing Cabﬂano Heoney and Ben Mckee
totally or they should sack him.

Please use the Twitter, Facebook and email etc, buttons below and help promete this post.

Kangaroo Court of Australia is an independent website and is reliant on donations to keep
publishing. If you would fike to Support the continuance of this siie, please click on the button

below to donate via PayPal or go to the donations page for other donation options. (Click here to

o to the Donations page

f you would like to follow this website, you can by email notification at the top right of this page
and about twice a week you will be notified when there is a new article.

Thank you for your support.
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SHANZ POl 3 o
AFFRMED &t Lomd. JoarcEonm

Signature of deponent ud’ W\_

Name of withess
Address of withess

Capacity of witness J#.lustice of the peace ¥Solicitor #Barrister #Commissioner

for affidavits #Notary public]
And es a witness, [ cerlify the following matters concerning the person who made this affidavit (the deponent):

1 #Isswihefaceofﬂ}edeponem_ DR deleiewhichever splion-ic-4

#! H = =My LEEOLINE fNenAnent hecals

irheve-knewnihe da ¢ for alleast 42 menth 2 -delete whichever option is inapplicab;‘e}
#| have confirmed the deponent's identity using the following identification document:
. % L3
M ExD ‘b)——ad o L—LC‘-QJ'-/‘\L..Q._

Identification d ent relied on (may be original or certified copy)t
Signature of withess ﬁi‘,ﬂ_/*—j

Note: The deponent and witness must sign each page of the affidavit. See UCPR /3{73.

[ The only "special justification® for not removing a face covering is 2 legitimate medical resson (st April 201 2)]
[" "identification dovuments” include Gurrent driver licence, proof of age card, Medicare card, credit card,
Centrslink pension card, Veterans Affairs entitlement card, student identity card, citizenship certificate, hirih
cerlificate, passport or see ion 2011 or JP Ruling 003 - ing i

declarations and affidavits, fooinote 3]
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF AUSTRALIA

SYDNEY REGISTRY

BETWEEN:

EXHIBIT “D”

No. of 20

Shane Dowling
Applicant

and

Seven Network (Operations)
First Respondent

Seven West Media Limited
Second Respondent

This is the exhibit marked “D” produced and shown to Shane Dowiling at the time
of affirming his affidavit this 14/5/19.

Before me

e

(Ms) Deborah Anné Bhili
A Justice of the Peacrtleelnpgicllhfgrs

the State of New South Wales
Reg. No. 223899

Statement of Claim
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COURT DETAILS

Court

Division

List

Registry

Case number

TITLE OF PROCEEDINGS

First plaintiff

Second plaintiff
Defendant

FILING DETAILS
Filed for

Legal representative

Legal representative reference

Contact name and telephone

Contact email
TYPE OF CLAIM

Other (Equity General List)
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STATEMENT OF CLAIM

Supreme Court of New South Wales
Equity

General

FILED
Sydney

2017/11677% 1 JUL 261

Shane Dowling

Seven Network (Operations) Limited and Seven West
Media Limited, plaintiffs

Martin O’Connor, Addisons
SEV001/4082
Richard Keegan 02 8915 1000

richard.keegan@addisonslawyers.com.au

This matter hge 8 figjed before the Cout

@m TECoD&mD.
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RELIEF CLAIMED

1

An order restraining the defendant, by himself, or his servants or agents, from using
or disclosing the Confidential Information.

2 Costs.

3 hterest.

4 Iterest on costs.

PLEADINGS AND PARTICULARS

1 “The plaintiffs are corporations entitled to sue in their corporate name and style.

2 ‘The defendant publishes stories and other information on a number of online
piatforms.

Particulars
a. www.kangaroocourt.com.au
b. Twitter: httgs:lftwitter.comiKangaroo Court
c. Facebook account: hﬂps:x’!www.facebook.coma‘kangaroocourtofaustra!iaf

3 Atall material times, the defendant owned and operated the website published at
the URL http://sevenversusamber.com (the SVA Website).

4 In July 2014, a dispute arose between the first plaintiff and Ms Amber Harrison.

5 Following a mediation of the dispute, the first plaintiff and Ms Harrison entered into a
confidential deed of release dated 14 November 2014 (the Deed).

6 As part of the Deed, Ms Harrison agreed to keep confidential all Confidential
Information as defined in the Deed, and not to copy or reproduce any Confidential
Information (“Confidential Information”).

Particulars
a. Clause 2.1(i) of the Deed

7 On or about 28 January 2017, the defendant via his website
www.kangaroocourtofaustralia.com.ay, published a copy of the Deed.

8 At least from about the time referred to in paragraph 7 above, the defendant was

2260801_2
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0n 13 February 2017, his Honour Justice McDougall made interim interlocutory
trders preventing Ms Harrison from disclosing information and/ or documents
tained by her in breach of her obligations under the Deed and in breach of her

wligations of confidentially generally (13 February Orders).

Un 21 February 2017, his Honour Justice McDougall extended the 13 February
17 Orders, except for order 2(f) (21 February Orders).

“The defendant received copies of the 13 February Orders and the 21 February
Crders on 18 April 2017. The defendant published copies of both sets of orders on
the defendant’s Twitter account @Kangaroo_Court,

Cnh 18 April 2017, the defendant published material including the 14 April Email, the
17 April Tweet and the SVA Article (all as defined in the affidavit of Richard Michael
Ksegan sworn 19 April 2017 in this proceeding).

Particulars

a. The 13 February Orders, 21 February Orders, 14 April Email and 17 April
Tweet were published on the defendant’s Twitter account:

6. The 14 April Email and the SVA Article were published on the SVA Website.

By publishing the 14 April Email, the 17 April Tweet and the SVA Article, the
defendant disclosed some of the Confidential Information.

Particulars of Confidential Information disclosed by defendant
—=——=—== 2 Loliicential Iniformation disclosed by defendant

a. The content of the text messages referred to in the 17 April Tweet and the
SVA Article, as defined in the affidavit of Richard Michael Keegan sworn on

19 April 2017 in this proceeding.
At all material times, in the premises, the defendant has owed the plaintiffs an
equitable obligation of confidence in relation to the Confidential Information referred
to in paragraph 13.
In making such use of the Confidential Information, the defendant breached the

obligation of confidence he owed to the plaintiffs.

2260801_2
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SIGNATURE OF LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

I certify under clause 4 of Schedule 2 to the Legal Profession Uniform Law Application Act
2014 that there are reasonable grounds for believing on the basis of provable facts and a
reasonably arguable view of the law that the claim for damages in these proceedings has

reasonable prospects of success.

| have advised the plaintiffs that court fees may be payable during these proceedings. These
fees may include a hearing allocation fee.

Signature

Capacity
Date of signature 31 July 2017
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT

If you do not file a defence within 28 days of being served with this statement of claim:
°  You will be in default in these proceedings.
e  The court may enter judgment against you without any further notice to you.

The judgment may be for the relief claimed in the statement of claim and for the plaintiffs’
costs of bringing these proceedings. The court may provide third parties with details of any
default judgment entered against you.

HOW TO RESPOND

Please read this statement of claim very carefully. If you have any troubie
understanding it or require assistance on how to respond to the claim you should get
legal advice as soon as possible.

You can get further information about what you need to do to respond to the claim from:
e A legal practitioner. |

* LawAccess NSW on 1300 888 529 or at www. lawaccess.nsw.gov.au.

e  The court registry for limited procedural information.

You can respond in one of the following ways:

1 If you intend to dispute the claim or part of the claim, by filing a defence and/or
making a cross-claim.

2260801_2
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rd #fmoney is claimed, and you believe you owe the money claimed, by:

- Paying the plaintiff all of the money and interest claimed. If you fije notice
of payment under UCPR 6.17 further proceedings against you will pe
Stayed unless the court otherwise orders.

e Filing an acknowledgement of the claim.
= Applying to the court for further time to pay the claim.
3 I¥ money is claimed, and you believe you owe part of the money claimed, py:
e Paying the plaintiff that part of the money that is claimed.
® Filing a defence in relation to the part that you do not believe is owaed.

Court forms are available on the UCPR website at www.ucprforms.justice.nsw.gov.au or

at any NSW court registry.

REGISTRY ADDRESS

Street address Law Courts Building, 184 Phillip Street, Sydney NSw 2000
Postal address Law Courts Building, 184 Phillip Street, Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone 1300 679 272

2260801_2
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF AUSTRALIA

SYDNEY REGISTRY No. of 20
BETWEEN: ' Shane Dowling
Applicant

and

Seven Network (Operations)
First Respondent

Seven West Media Limited
Second Respondent

EXHIBIT “E”

This is the exhibit marked [Exhibit No] produced and shown to Shane Dowling at
the time of affirming his affidavit this 14/5/19.

Latest court orders made

Before me

-SﬂhatoﬂJustlce of the Peace

(Ms) Deborah Anne Phillips
A Justice of the Peace in and for
the State of New South Wales
Reg. No. 223899
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Extractied below are the latest orders as recorded on the online registry.

2017/00116771-001 Summons: Seven Network (Operations) Limited v Shane
Dowling

Order Listing management - adjournments / Adjourned/ Relisted (general) no
status change made on 03 Apr 19 for proceeding 2017/00116771-
001, 2017/00116771-004

This matter is listed for Directions (Equity Registrar) on 22 May 2019 9:30 AM before
the Supreme Court - Civil at Supreme Court Sydney.
Estimated duration: 5 Minutes

THE COURT ORDERS (Registrar Walton):
1. Orders 1-2 in document ORDER filed in Court.
2. Stand Over to 22 May 2019.

ORDER:
1. The plaintiffs to serve any further non-expert evidence in support of the notice of

motion filed 21 July 2017 by 3 May 20189.
2. The plaintiffs to serve any expert evidence in support of the notice of motion filed 21

July 2017 by 17 May 2019.



